
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
Joint Scrutiny Committee agenda - Monday, 21 September 2020

Page 1

Agenda

Contact: Candida Mckelvey, Democratic Services Officer
Telephone 07895 213820
Email: candida.mckelvey@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 11 September 2020
www.southoxon.gov.uk
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A meeting of the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee
will be held on Monday, 21 September 2020 at 6.30 pm 
virtual meeting

Members of the Committee:
Councillors

South Vale
Ian White (co chair) Nathan Boyd (co chair)
Sam Casey-Rerhaye Andy Cooke
Stefan Gawrysiak Amos Duveen
Alexandrine Kantor Hayleigh Gascoigne
George Levy David Grant

Preferred Substitutes

South
Ken Arlett
Anna Badcock
David Bretherton
Peter Dragonetti
Victoria Haval
Kellie Hinton
Caroline Newton
Jo Robb
Anne-Marie Simpson
Alan Thompson

Vale
Eric Batts
Samantha Bowring
Andy Foulsham 
Alison Jenner
Janet Shelley
Max Thompson
Elaine Ware

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These include large 
print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special requirements 
(such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this agenda.  Please 
give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

Margaret Reed, Head of Legal and Democratic 

mailto:candida.mckelvey@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
Joint Scrutiny Committee agenda - Monday, 21 September 2020

Page 2

Agenda
Open to the Public including the Press

1. Apologies for absence 
 
 
To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2. Minutes 
(Pages 4 - 7) 
 
To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Scrutiny Committee minutes of the meeting 
held on 16 January 2020.

3. Declarations of interest 
 
 
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.   

4. Urgent business and chairman's announcements 
 
 
To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered 
as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, 
and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5. Public participation 
 
 
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered to 
speak.  

REPORTS AND OTHER ITEMS BROUGHT BEFORE THE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
FOR ITS CONSIDERATION 

6. Biffa annual performance report 
(Pages 8 - 31) 
 
To review the annual perormance report for Biffa. Officer: Ian Matten

7. Community Safety Partnership annual report 
(Pages 32 - 126) 
 
To review the annual report of the Community Safety Partnership.

 South and Vale Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Scrutiny Report 



South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse District Councils
Joint Scrutiny Committee agenda - Monday, 21 September 2020

Page 3

 Appendix A - South and Vale CSP Plan 2020/21
 Appendix B - Oxfordshire Strategic Intelligence Assessment 2019/20
 Appendix C - South and Vale CSP financial summary 2019/20

8. Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings 
(Pages 127 - 138) 
 
To review the attached scrutiny work schedule. Please note, although the dates are 
confirmed, the items under consideration are subject to being withdrawn, added to or 
rearranged without further notice.

9. Exclusion of the public 
 
 
To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that: 
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and 
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.  

10. Confidential item 
 
 
5CP Report – officers: Adrianna Partridge, Simon Hewings



South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council – Joint Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 16 January 2020 Sc.1

Minutes
of a meeting of the
Joint Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday 16 January 2020 at 6.30 pm
at the Meeting Room 1, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton OX14 4SB 

Open to the public, including the press

Present: 
Members: 
South Oxfordshire District Councillors: Ian White (Chair for this meeting), Peter Dragonetti 
(In place of Sam Casey-Rerhaye), Stefan Gawrysiak, Alexandrine Kantor, and George 
Levy 

Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Nathan Boyd (Vice-chair for this meeting), 
Andy Cooke, Amos Duveen, Hayleigh Gascoigne, David Grant

Officers: Steve Culliford, Andrew Down, Marybeth Harasz, Susan Harbour, and Adrianna 
Partridge 

Also present: Councillor Sue Cooper (South Oxfordshire), Councillors Judy Roberts, 
Emily Smith and Richard Webber (Vale of White Horse)

Number of members of the public: 4

Sc.15 Apologies for absence 

Councillor Sam Casey-Rerhaye had sent her apologies for absence and appointed 
Councillor Peter Dragonetti as her substitute.  

Sc.16 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held on 
10 September 2019 and agree that the Chair signs them as such.  

Sc.17 Declarations of interest 

Councillors Andy Cooke, Peter Dragonetti and Hayleigh Gascoigne all declared personal 
interests in the Oxfordshire Growth Board agenda item as they were members of the 
Growth Board’s Scrutiny Panel.  Councillor Gascoigne also declared a personal interest in 
the Didcot Garden Town agenda item as she was a local resident and local ward member.  

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council – Joint Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 16 January 2020 Sc.2

Sc.18 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

The chair announced details of the emergency evacuation procedure and asked all 
present to silence their mobile phones.  

Sc.19 Public participation 

Two members of the public had registered to speak at the meeting and made statements 
as follows.  

(1) Rita Atkinson of Sutton Courtenay Parish Council spoke in favour of allowing the 
parish council a place on the Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board.  

(2) Councillor Richard Webber, the Vale ward member for Sutton Courtenay, spoke in 
support of allowing the parish council a place on the Didcot Garden Town Advisory 
Board.  

Sc.20 Governance of the Oxfordshire Growth Board 

Councillors Andy Cooke, Peter Dragonetti and Hayleigh Gascoigne all declared personal 
interests in this item as they were members of the Growth Board’s Scrutiny Panel.  

The committee considered the head of partnership and insight’s report on the organisation 
and governance of the Oxfordshire Growth Board.  The report set out the scope and 
purpose of the Growth Board, the membership and resources, its decision-making, its role 
in the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal, and details of the Growth Board review 
currently taking place.  The leaders of South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse district 
councils were present and answered the committee’s questions.  

The Growth Board was a joint committee consisting of six voting members, who were the 
leaders of Oxfordshire’s six principal councils.  There were also non-voting members 
invited to the table to take an active part at each meeting.  The board meetings were well-
attended by the public, many of which took up the opportunity to address the Growth 
Board during a public speaking session.  The Growth Board also had a separate Scrutiny 
Panel and several sub-groups to concentrate on specific subjects.  

The Growth Board had commenced a review of its operations and was due to publish a 
report on the outcome shortly.  Committee members were urged to read this document 
and to come to the Growth Board meetings or those of its Scrutiny Panel.  The committee 
noted that the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal was a deal between the government 
and the principal councils in Oxfordshire.  This deal was part of the Growth Board’s work 
but not its sole focus.  The deal had previously been subject to scrutiny.  

RESOLVED: to note the head of partnership and insight’s report.  

Sc.21 Didcot Garden Town 

Councillor Hayleigh Gascoigne declared a personal interest in this item as she was a local 
resident and local ward member.  

Page 5



South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council – Joint Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 16 January 2020 Sc.3

The committee considered the head of partnership and insight’s report into the project 
delivery and governance arrangements of Didcot Garden Town.  The report also updated 
on recent community engagement and the potential timeline for work programmes.  The 
Vale’s Cabinet member for partnership and insight and South Oxfordshire’s Leader 
answered the committee’s questions.  

The Cabinet member reported that since the report was first considered by the Vale’s 
Cabinet in July, the governance arrangements had been amended to take into account 
Cabinet’s concerns.  The governance structure proposed was now more inclusive and 
community-driven.  There were three sounding boards, one for local residents, one for the 
business community, and one for parish councils to feed in their ideas to an advisory 
board.  The advisory board would make recommendations to the representative 
organisations.  In response to the request from Sutton Courtenay Parish Council, there 
was now a designated parish council representative on the advisory board.  

The committee welcomed the changes to the governance arrangements but made two 
suggestions to improve the structure further: 

 that the parish council representative on the Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board 
should be chosen from the five parish councils within the Didcot Garden Town 
boundary; and 

 that the Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board be asked to consider adding a voting 
member to increase its environmental representation.   

The committee’s rationale behind these suggestions was that the most appropriate 
parishes to represent parish councils on the advisory board were the five parish councils 
nearest to Didcot and the parishes that fell within the Didcot Garden Town boundary.  The 
outer lying parishes within the area of influence could feed in their ideas through the parish 
councils’ sounding board.  Also, the committee considered that adding an environmental 
representative was important to balance the other competing aims.  However, it was 
recognised that finding an appropriate environmental representative was not an easy task.  
The committee considered that this representative should be independent of the other 
partners.  

RESOLVED: to recommend the South and Vale Cabinets that they:

(a) approve the operating guidelines, terms of reference and revised governance for the 
Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board and sounding boards, as set out in appendix 2 
to the head of partnership and insight’s report to the Joint Scrutiny Committee on 16 
January 2020, with the following changes:
(i) the parish council representative on the Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board 

be chosen from the five parish councils within the Didcot Garden Town 
boundary; 

(ii) recommend that the Didcot Garden Town Advisory Board considers adding a 
voting member to increase its environmental representation; 

(b) agree to name the nominated Didcot Garden Town Board as the ‘Didcot Garden 
Town Advisory Board’; 

(c) agree the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan project priorities; and 

Page 6



South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council – Joint Scrutiny Committee minutes 

Thursday, 16 January 2020 Sc.4

(d) delegate authority to the relevant head of service to apply for future funding 
opportunities that directly align with the Didcot Garden Town Delivery Plan as 
appropriate.  

Sc.22 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny 
meetings 

The committee reviewed and updated its work programme, adding items as follows:
 A review of progress with the Didcot Garden Town project – November 
 A report on progress with the Oxfordshire Growth Board governance review – in six 

to nine months

The meeting closed at 8.14 pm

Page 7



1

Joint Scrutiny Committee Report

Report of Head of Housing and Environment
Author: Ian Matten
Tel: 01235 422113
E-mail: ian.matten@southandvale.gov.uk 
Vale Cabinet Member responsible: Emily Smith
Tel: 07879 640645 
E-mail: emily.smith@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
DATE: 21 September 2020

South Cabinet Member responsible: David Rouane 
Tel: 07957 287799 
E-mail: david.rouane@southoxon.gov.uk

Performance review of
Biffa Municipal Ltd – 2019
RECOMMENDATION
That scrutiny committee considers Biffa Municipal Ltd (Biffa) performance in delivering 
the household waste collection, street cleansing and ancillary services contract for the 
period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 and makes any comments before a final 
assessment on performance is made.

PURPOSE OF REPORT
1. To ask scrutiny committee for its views on the performance of Biffa in providing the 

household waste collection, street cleansing and ancillary services in South Oxfordshire 
and Vale of White Horse for the period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
2. The service contributes to Vale’s Corporate Plan (2016 – 2020) of running an efficient 

council and continue to improve our environment and South’s Corporate Plan (2016 – 
2020) of delivering services that reflect residents needs and build thriving communities 
by making communities clean and safe. 

BACKGROUND
3. Managing contractor performance is essential for delivering the councils objectives and 

targets.  Since a high proportion of the councils services are outsourced, the councils 
cannot deliver high quality services to its residents unless its contractors are performing 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



2

well.  Using an agreed framework and working jointly with contractors to review 
performance regularly is therefore essential.  

4. The councils process for managing contractor performance focuses on continuous 
improvement and action planning.  The councils realise that the success of the 
framework depends on contractors and the councils working together to set and review 
realistic, jointly agreed and measurable targets. 

5. The overall framework is designed to be:

 a way for the councils to consistently measure contractor performance, to help 
highlight and resolve operational issues

 flexible enough to suit each contract, including smaller contracts which may 
not require all elements of the framework

 a step towards managing risk more effectively and improving performance 
through action planning.

OVERVIEW OF THE REVIEW FRAMEWORK
6. Evaluating contractor performance has four elements:

1. performance measured against key performance targets (KPT)
2. customer satisfaction with the total service experience
3. councils satisfaction as client
4. a summary of strengths and areas for improvement, feedback from the 

contractor on the overall assessment plus the contractor’s suggestions of 
ways in which the councils might improve performance.

7. The first three dimensions are assessed, and the head of service makes a judgement of 
classification. The fourth element is a summary of strengths and areas for improvement 
and includes contractor feedback.  Where some dimensions are not relevant, or difficult 
to apply fairly to certain types of contract, the framework may be adjusted or simplified 
at the discretion of the head of service.

8. A summary of officer’s assessment in 2019 for each dimension, the overall assessment 
and a comparison against 2018 can be seen in the following table:

2018 2019

Key Performance Target Fair Good

Customer satisfaction Good Good

Councils satisfaction Fair Good

Overall officer 
assessment Fair Good

Page 9



3

9. Biffa were awarded the joint waste contract in December 2008 with a commencement 
date in South Oxfordshire of June 2009.  The Vale of White Horse element of the 
contract commenced in October 2010.  The councils in 2013 decided, in accordance 
with the conditions of contract to extend the contract for a seven-year period. The 
contract is due to end in June 2024.

10.The current value of the contract, as a fixed annual charge is £11,229,924 per annum of 
which the Vale of White Horse proportion is £5,312,112 per annum and South 
Oxfordshire is £5,917,812 per annum.

11.The contract includes delivery of the following services:

 weekly collection of household food waste from 23 litre bins

 fortnightly collection of household recycling from 240 litre wheeled bins or clear 
sacks, collecting textiles from bags placed next to the recycling bin, collecting 
batteries placed in a clear bag on top of the recycling bin

 fortnightly collection of household residual waste from 180 litre wheeled bins or pink 
sacks this is collected on the alternate week to recycling, collection of small electrical 
items in bags placed next to the residual bin

 emptying bulk bins for refuse, recycling and food waste bins provided for flats and 
communal properties

 fortnightly collection of household garden waste to residents who have opted into this 
charged for service. In January 2020, there were 53,665 garden waste bins provided 
to customers across the two districts

 collection from Waste Electronic and Electrical Equipment (WEEE) bring banks

 collection of household bulky waste items for which there is a charge

 litter collection and cleansing of roads, streets and public areas

 emptying of litter and dog bins

 provide a dedicated call centre facility to residents

 removal of fly-tipping.

DIMENSION 1 – KEY PERFORMANCE TARGETS (KPT)
12.  KPT are included in the Biffa contract to provide a benchmark against which 

performance can be measured.  The KPT cover those aspects of the service which are 
considered to be of most concern to our residents and are measured on an ongoing 
basis and reported monthly by Biffa.  The current KPT for this contract are:

 KPT 1 - missed collections – number of missed collections per 100,000 collections.  
Target - no more than 50.

Page 10



4

 KPT 2 - rectification of missed collections – percentage of reported missed 
household collections rectified within 48 hours of the scheduled collection day.  
Target - 100 per cent.

 KPT 3 - percentage of household waste sent for re-use, recycling and composting.  
Although it was agreed that KPT 3 would be removed from the contract when the 
promotion’s role was transferred to the councils (2016) and Biffa can no longer 
directly influence this, it is still a key outcome from the contract and performance is 
driven in part by the proficiency of the collection service. Performance is measured 
against the official UK waste from recycling rate. For 2018 this was 45.0 per 
cent.

 KPT 4 - NI 195 - improved street and environmental cleanliness – levels of litter and 
detritus.  Since April 2011 national indicator for waste NI 195 is no longer used as 
national measure, however the councils have continued to use these as a measure 
of the contractor’s performance. Targets - litter 4 per cent, detritus 7 per cent.

 KPT 5 – Incomplete rounds – the number of properties affected as a result of 
incomplete rounds. Target – fewer than 1,000 per month.

 KPT 6 – Call centre – average time residents spend on hold before the call is 
answered. Target – 35 seconds.

 KPT 7 – Deliveries – New properties, Percentage of bins delivered within ten working 
days of the request being logged. Target – 85 per cent.

 KPT 8 – Deliveries – Replacement bins, Percentage of bins delivered within ten 
working days of the request being logged. Target – 85 per cent.

 KPT 9 – Fly tipping – percentage of fly tips cleared from high intensity areas within 12 
working hours of a report received. Target – 90 per cent.

 KPT 10 – Fly tipping – Percentage of fly tips under three cubic metres, not in high 
intensity areas cleared within 24 hours of a report being received. Target – 90 per 
cent.

KPT 1 – Missed Collections

13.Performance is calculated as the number of reported missed collections per 100,000 
collections for the period 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. 

14.During this review period the average number of missed collections across the two 
districts was 90 per 100,000 collections.  In 2018 the number was 102 per 100,000.  A 
combined total of 12,320 collections were logged as missed throughout the review 
period across the two districts, this is out of a total of 13,740,452 potential collections 
(each bin type is recorded as a separate collection) and equates to 99.9 per cent of bins 
being collected on time. Despite the high percentage of bins collected on time the 
overall rating for this KPT is “weak” because the target is no more than 50 per 100,000 
collections.

Page 11



5

15.Out of all the missed collection’s food bins are the most frequently missed, 5,422 (44 
per cent) throughout the review period, although this is not unsurprising as these bins 
are collected weekly compared to the other types of bins which are collected fortnightly.

16.  All crews now have access to an electronic device in their cab (PDA) which includes 
details of all roads they need to collect from and allows crews to actively report back 
issues with individual collections – for example to highlight where a bin was not out for 
collection at the time the crew attended; issues with contamination of recycling bins and 
where there are access problems preventing a collection being made. 

17.During the review period uptake and usage of the PDA system by the crews was 
sporadic, reflecting the challenge Biffa’s supervisors have in persuading operational 
staff of the wider benefits of what may seem like an additional and unnecessary 
administrative process. 

KPT 2 – Rectification of missed collections 

18.This measure is the percentage of reported missed collections rectified within 48 hours 
of the scheduled collection day. The target is 100 per cent. During this review period out 
of the 12,320 reported missed bins 98.47 per cent were rectified within the 48-hour 
target, compared to last year’s figure of 84 per cent. 

19.This results in a “good” rating for this review period.  

KPT 3 – Percentage of household waste sent for re-use, recycling and 
composting

20.Table one below shows that the combined performance of both councils for KPT 3 was 
63.13 per cent an increase on last year’s figure of 62.90 per cent, for information the 
previous five years’ figures are also shown.  

21.The figures show an increase of 1,883 tonnes of total recycling collected in 2019, 
compared to the previous year. This included an increase in the amount of garden 
waste and food waste collected but a reduction in the dry recycling tonnage.  There was 
an increase of 763 tonnes of refuse collected.   It should be noted that during the review 
period there was an increase of 2,500 properties added to the collection rounds which 
would explain the majority of additional tonnage collected.

22.Although KPT 3 does not have a formal target, it continues to be measured against the 
official UK waste from households recycling rate which for 2018 was 45 per cent. This is 
the official recycling measure which is used as the basis for reporting at UK level 
against the waste Framework Directive which set a target to recycle 50 per cent of 
household waste by 2020.  The overall rating for this KPT is “excellent”

Page 12



6

Table One 

Dry 
recycling 
(tonnes)

Food waste 
(tonnes)

Garden 
waste 
(tonnes)

Total 
recycling 
(tonnes)

Refuse to 
ERF & 
Landfill 
(tonnes)

Total 
recycling 
plus refuse 
(tonnes)

% Recycled

1 January –   
31 
December 
2014

32,404 9,770 18,806 60,980 30,835 91,815 66.41%

1 January –   
31 
December 
2015

32,265 9,455 18,637 60,357 31,056 91,413 66.03%

1 January –   
31 
December 
2016

28,948 9,942 19,888 58,778 34,045 92,823 63.32%

1 January –   
31 
December 
2017

26,854 9,972 20,896 57,722 34,206 91,928 62.79%

1 January –   
31 
December 
2018

28,052 11,015 19,921 58,988 34,781 93,768 62.90%

1 January –   
31 
December 
2019

27,340 11,526 22,006 60,871 35,544 96,415 63.13%

KPT 4 – National Indicator (NI) 195 Improved street and environmental 
cleanliness – levels of litter and detritus

23.At the commencement of the contract, the councils and Biffa agreed targets for the 
levels of litter and detritus. These targets were as follows:

 No more than four per cent of relevant land to have unacceptable levels of litter.

 No more than seven per cent of relevant land to have unacceptable levels of detritus.

24.The councils are no longer required to report nationally on NI 195, however for 
consistency contract performance for street cleanliness continues to be monitored using 
the same methodology. Inspections are carried out by an independent company 

Page 13



7

specialising in this type of work who asses the levels of litter and detritus using Defra’s 
Code of Practice on Litter and Refuse. It is reported as percentage of relevant land that 
is assessed as having levels of litter and detritus that fall below an acceptable level.

25.The combined scores achieved in this review period were 1 per cent for litter and 15 per 
cent for detritus.  Both the litter score and detritus levels have improved from last year 
when litter was 4 per cent and detritus 17 per cent. Despite this improvement the overall 
rating for this KPT remains the same at “fair”.

KPT 5 – Incomplete rounds – the number of properties affected as a 
result of incomplete rounds This KPT was introduced in 2017 to quantify the 
impacts of reliability issues with Biffa’s fleet which caused collection rounds to be 
incomplete on the correct day. These were not measured as part of the missed 
collection KPT.

27.The target for this KPT is fewer than 1,000 per month. The average number of 
properties affected by incomplete rounds in this review period was only 50 per month. 
This compares to 1,289 per month in 2017. The overall assessment against this KPT is 
“excellent”.

KPT 6 – Call centre – average time residents spend on hold before the 
call is answered The average time residents spent on hold before their call was 
answered is measured and reported monthly. 

29.During this review period the average time residents spent on hold was 18 seconds.  
This exceeds the target of 35 seconds and a significant improvement on last year’s 
figure of 54 seconds. The overall rating for this KPT is “excellent”.

KPT 7 – Deliveries – New properties, Percentage of bins delivered within 
ten working days of the request being logged The percentage of bins 
delivered to new properties within ten working days of the request being logged is 
measured and reported monthly. 

31.During this review period 8,081 out of a total of 8,222 bins were delivered within ten 
working days this equates to 98 per cent compared to 54 per cent in the previous year. 
The number of orders for bins are very high due to the amount of new housing in both 
districts and the increase in garden waste customers. The overall assessment against 
this KPT is “excellent”.

KPT 8 – Deliveries – Replacement bins, Percentage of bins delivered 
within ten working days of the request being logged

32.The percentage of replacement bins delivered within ten working days of the request 
being logged is measured and reported monthly. 

33.During this review period 10,321 out of a total of 10,458 replacement bins were 
delivered within ten working days this equates to 99 per cent compared to 56 per cent in 
the previous year. The overall assessment against this KPT is “excellent”.

KPT 9 – Fly tipping - percentage of fly tips cleared from high intensity 
areas within 12 working hours of a report being received 100 per cent of 
fly-tips were cleared in high intensity areas within 12 hours of a report being received 

Page 14



8

during this review period.  There were 94 fly-tips in high intensity areas, there are some 
occasions when the time being measured is paused for a short period to allow our 
Envirocrime team time to investigate a fly tip to obtain evidence. Once any evidence is 
collected, we instruct Biffa to proceed with the clearance.

35.The overall assessment against this KPT is “excellent”. 

KPT 10 – Fly tipping - Percentage of fly tips under three cubic metres, not 
in high intensity areas cleared within 24 hours of a report being 
received

36.99.5 per cent of fly-tips outside high intensity areas were cleared within 24 hours of a 
report received during this review period. There were 1066 fly-tips within this review 
period, an increase from 953 last year, there are some occasions when the time being 
measured is paused for a short period to allow our Envirocrime team time to investigate 
a fly tip to obtain evidence. Once any evidence is collected, we instruct Biffa to proceed 
with the clearance

37.The overall assessment against this KPT is “excellent”. 

Average rating score – KPT 1 – 10

38.Based on Biffa’s performance an overall KPT performance rating score of 4.4 has been 
achieved, the previous satisfaction rating score was 2.6.  An analysis of performance 
against the KPTs can be found in Annex A.

39.For reasons of consistency with previous assessments, and for fairness between 
contractors, the following is a guide to the assessment of Biffa against all KPT: 

Score 1 – 1.4999 1.5 – 2.499 2.5 – 3.499 3.5 – 4.499 4.5 – 5.0
Classification Poor Weak Fair Good Excellent

40.The head of service has made a judgement on KPT performance as follows:

KPT judgement good

Previous KPT judgement for comparison good

Page 15



9

DIMENSION 2 – CUSTOMER SATISFACTION
41.Customer satisfaction for this report has been measured using the results of the most 

recent residents survey available which was carried out in December 2017.  Please 
note there was no residents survey in 2019 and therefore the figures here are the same 
as they were in 2017 and 2018 scrutiny report. M-E-L Research were commissioned to 
undertake a door stepping survey.  In total 1,100 responses were received in each 
district.

42.  The main areas of questioning regarding satisfaction with the waste service were:

 Satisfaction with the waste and recycling collection service. 

 Satisfaction with street cleaning and keeping the area clean and litter free.

43. In terms of satisfaction with the waste and recycling collection service 85 per cent of 
South residents and 83 per cent of Vale residents are either satisfied or very satisfied.  

44. In terms of satisfaction with street cleansing 72 per cent of Vale residents are either 
satisfied or very satisfied with the cleanliness of the streets and pavements in their local 
area.  In South 77 per cent said they were either satisfied or very satisfied. 

45.We acknowledge that the data is three years old and are working with our engagement 
team to address this for the next review

46.Based on Biffa’s performance a combined overall customer satisfaction rating score of 
3.89 has been achieved. An analysis of customer satisfaction can be found in Annex B.

47.For reasons of consistency with previous assessments, and for fairness between 
contractors, the following is a guide to the assessment of Biffa on overall customer 
satisfaction:

Score <3.0 3.0 – 3.399 3.4 – 3.899 3.9 – 4.299 4.3 – 5.0
Classification Poor Weak Fair Good Excellent

48.Taking into account that 84 per cent of residents are satisfied or very satisfied with the 
waste collection service, the relatively small number of complaints received and that the 
combined overall satisfaction rating score is only 0.01 point away from a good rating the 
head of service has made a judgement on customer satisfaction as follows:

Overall assessment good

Previous customer satisfaction judgement for comparison good

Page 16



10

DIMENSION 3 – COUNCILS SATISFACTION 
49.As part of the performance review officers with direct knowledge and who frequently 

interact with the contractor were asked to complete a short questionnaire, this included 
the head of service, services manager, team leader, recycling officers, technical 
monitoring officers, enforcement officer and business support team. In total ten 
questionnaires were sent out and returned. 

50.Operationally, key relationships with supervisors and depot managers has been good. 
There were some persistent repeat missed collections which resulted in ten remediation 
notices being issued. The councils also issued nine default notices during the review 
period. A default notice results in a financial deduction from the Biffa’s monthly invoice.  

51.Based on Biffa’s performance an overall councils satisfaction rating score of 4.05 has 
been achieved moving it into the “good” classification. Last year’s overall rating score 
was 3.85. An analysis of councils satisfaction can be found in Annex C.

52.For reasons of consistency with previous assessments, and for fairness between 
contractors, the following is a guide to the assessment of Biffa on councils satisfaction:

Score <3.0 3.0 – 3.399 3.4 – 3.899 3.9 – 4.299 4.3 – 5.0
Classification Poor Weak Fair Good Excellent

53.The head of service has made a judgement on councils satisfaction as follows:

Councils satisfaction judgement good

Previous councils satisfaction judgement for comparison fair

OVERALL ASSESSMENT
54.Other areas of note within this review period are:

 South confirmed by DEFRA as the second highest English recycling authority for 
2018/19 with a rate of 63.3 per cent

 Vale confirmed by DEFRA as the fourth highest English recycling authority for 
2018/19 with a rate of 62.5 per cent. 

 driver recruitment and retention within the waste sector is a nationally recognised 
challenge which has continued to be a factor in this review 

 KPT 1, KPT 2 and KPT 4 have bonus payments linked to them. As a result of not 
achieving these targets in 2018/19, £120,432 was deducted from Biffa’s invoices.  

Page 17



11

55.Considering the performance of the contractor against KPT, customer satisfaction, 
councils satisfaction and the other areas of note above the head of service has made an 
overall assessment as follows:

Overall assessment good

Previous overall assessment for comparison fair

STRENGTHS AND AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
56.Annex C records strengths and areas for improvement relating to the performance of 

the contractor in this review period.  

57.Areas for improvement identified in last year’s reviews and actions taken are as follows:

 Communication improvement between Client, Call centre and Depot, 

Communications between the councils and depot are good with regular operations 
meeting taking place. Daily updates are being received by the councils. There are 
occasions when communication between the call centre and depot has not been as 
clear as it should be which has led to a delay in an issue being resolved. The 
business manager is working with the call centre manager to address this. Training 
the call centre staff to identify any repeat complaints so that they can be flagged with 
the depot is helping.  

 Overall usage and quality of data collected on PDAs

As mentioned within the report use of the PDA’s has been sporadic during this review 
period, however the management have worked hard to get the operatives on board 
with this technology and there has been a significant increase in usage during 2020. 

 Some reoccurring issues tend to take a while to resolve and residents become very 
frustrated.

This continues to be an issue for a very small number of residents and has resulted 
in ten remediation notices and nine default notices being issued during this review 
period.

 Crews checking bins for contamination and properly following tag/PDA process and 
returning bins to presentation point

With the introduction of PDA’s for each of the vehicles it has enabled additional 
information to be available to the crews when they are making collections. However, 
this still doesn’t replace the operational knowledge of individual crew member but the 
reliance on this is not as significant as it used to be. Regular refresher training for the 
crews does take place to remind crews of the correct procedures.

 Staff retention to maintain consistency and understanding of the performance levels 
expected

Page 18



12

Not being able to retain staff, mainly due to the nature of the work, is an ongoing 
issue for Biffa and the industry in general, this does have a significant impact on the 
performance of the contractor when round knowledge and experience is lost. 

 Resolve the number of missed bins and the impact this has on all aspects of the 
service 

There has been a slight improvement in the number of missed bins, but this is still the 
main KPT failing with 12,320 collections being missed during the review period. 
Although to put this into context this is only 0.1 per cent of the total collections made. 

COMMENTS AND COMPLAINTS
58.The councils received seven formal stage one complaints relating to Biffa’s performance 

during this review period compared to six last year. Of these, five were related to 
missed collections, one was for not following procedures and one related to a staffing 
matter.  

59.During this review period the councils received a number of compliments from residents 
relating to the waste service including:

 She wanted to say the current food loader in her road has been very helpful to 
her - she's elderly and has been unwell - and the loader has put the kerbside 
caddy on her door step after he saw her, she wanted us to know she appreciated 
it. 

 I complained to you a few weeks ago about the weeds and dirty gutters in my 
close, and today I came back from a morning out to find that you have removed 
weeds and swept gutters. I would like to thank you, the close now looks so much 
neater and smarter, thank you very much.

 Just want to express my thanks and appreciation for the fantastic job Biffa did in 
Henley Town Centre during Regatta this year. Particular thanks to your Biffa 
Team who kept Station Park & Station Road amazingly neat and tidy in the face 
of the thousands of visitors arriving by train. The first impression these Visitors 
had of our beautiful town was excellent.

 I just wanted to thank you and your teams for pulling out all the stops for Goring 
in Bloom over the last few weeks. We were jumping with joy when we heard the 
road sweeper come around before both judging days. The village looked 
amazing and its smart appearance has been commented on by many people. 
We were able to proudly talk about SODC’s recycling record and its efforts to 
make improvements in other ways too, including the excellent work by the new 
Public Realm department in the car park.

 On Wednesday 21st August 2019, around 8-8.30am 2 of your operatives doing 
the Brown Bin Collection rang my doorbell. They were concerned because my 
elderly next-door neighbour, who has dementia, was sat on her doorstep talking 
nonsense. They seemed a little nervous about imposing on me, but no doubt 
didn't know I am a retired surgeon. They not only did the right thing but they rang 

Page 19



13

the right doorbell! The lady was very confused and is now in hospital where she 
is improving, thanks to your operatives’ action.

CONTRACTORS FEEDBACK
60.A key feature of the process for reviewing the performance of contractors is that the 

councils provides them with an opportunity to give their feedback on the assessment, 
including suggestions for improvements to councils processes.  This is included in 
Annex D.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
61.There are no financial implications arising from this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
62.There are no legal implications arising from this report.

CONCLUSION
63.There has been an overall improvement in performance during 2019 with seven out of 

the ten KPI achieving an excellent rating.  

64.The number of missed bins and the retention of staff are the two main issues which 
need to be addressed

65.The head of service has assessed Biffa’s performance as “good” for its delivery of the 
household waste collection, street cleansing and ancillary services contract for 2019.  
The committee is asked to make any comments to the Cabinet Members with 
responsibility for waste to enable them to make a final assessment on performance by 
way of an Individual Cabinet Member decision. 

66. If the committee does not agree with the head of service’s assessment, then this report 
will be referred to Cabinet for further discussion and a final assessment of Biffa’s 
performance.  

BACKGROUND PAPERS
67.None

Page 20



14

Annex A – Key performance targets

KPT 
ref

Description of 
KPT

Target Performance Individual 
KPT rating 
(excellent, 
good, fair, 
weak or poor)

KPT rating 
score
(excellent = 
5, good = 4, 
fair = 3, 
weak = 2, 
poor = 1)

KPT 
1

missed 
collections 

No more than 
50 missed 
collection per 
100,000 
collections

90 per 100,000 
collections 

weak 2

KPT 
2

rectification of 
missed 
collections
percentage of 
substantiated 
missed 
household 
collections 
rectified within 
48 hours of the 
scheduled 
collection day

100 per cent 98.47% good 4

KPT 
3

percentage of 
household 
waste sent for 
re-use, 
recycling and 
composting

Performance 
is measured 
against the 
official UK 
waste from 
households 
recycling rate 
which for 
2018 was 
45%

Combined 63.13% excellent 5

KPT 
4 

improved street 
and 
environmental 
cleanliness – 
levels of litter 
and detritus

4% litter 
7% detritus

1%
15%

fair 3

Page 21



15

KPT 
ref

Description of 
KPT

Target Performance Individual 
KPT rating 
(excellent, 
good, fair, 
weak or poor)

KPT rating 
score
(excellent = 
5, good = 4, 
fair = 3, 
weak = 2, 
poor = 1)

KPT 
5

incomplete 
rounds – the 
number of 
properties 
affected as a 
result of 
incomplete 
rounds 

less than 
1,000 per 
month

50 excellent 5

KPT 
6

call centre – 
average time 
residents spend 
on hold before 
the call is 
answered

35 seconds 18 seconds excellent 5

KPT 
7

deliveries – 
New properties, 
Percentage of 
bins delivered 
within ten 
working days of 
the request 
being logged

85% 98% excellent 5

KPT 
8 

deliveries – 
Replacement 
bins, 
Percentage of 
bins delivered 
within ten 
working days of 
the request 
being logged 

85% 99% excellent 5

KPT 
9

fly tipping – 
percentage of 
fly tips cleared 
from high 
intensity areas 
within 12 
working hours 
of a report 
received

90% 100% excellent 5

KPT 
10

fly tipping – 
Percentage of 
fly tips under 
three cubic 

90% 99.5% excellent 5

Page 22



16

KPT 
ref

Description of 
KPT

Target Performance Individual 
KPT rating 
(excellent, 
good, fair, 
weak or poor)

KPT rating 
score
(excellent = 
5, good = 4, 
fair = 3, 
weak = 2, 
poor = 1)

metres, not in 
high intensity 
areas cleared 
within 24 hours 
of a report 
being received

Overall “average” KPT performance rating score – KPT 1-10 (arithmetic 
average) refers to points 38-40 in the report

4.4

Page 23



17

Annex B – Customer satisfaction
In total 2,200 residents across both councils responded to questions about the waste 
contract.  Not every respondent answered all the questions.

Q. How satisfied are you, with the waste and recycling collection service?

Rating Number of 
responses

Score 
weighting

Total

Very satisfied 554 X 5 2770
Fairly satisfied 1295 X 4 5180
Neither satisfied 
or dissatisfied

214 X3 642

Not very satisfied 111 X 2 222
Not at all satisfied 26 X 1 26

Total 2200 8840

Waste and recycling collection service - resident satisfaction calculation: 8840 ÷ 2200 = 
4.02

The following is a guide to the assessment of Biffa on customer satisfaction for the waste 
collection service: 

Score <3.0 3.0 – 3.399 3.4 – 3.899 3.9 – 4.299 4.3 – 5.0
Classification Poor Weak Fair Good Excellent

Q. How satisfied are you with the standard of cleanliness of the streets and 
pavements in the village or town where you live?

Rating Number of 
responses

Score 
weighting

Total

Very satisfied 137 X 5 685
Fairly satisfied 952 X 4 3808
Neither satisfied or 
dissatisfied

207 X 3 621

Not very satisfied 152 X 2 304
Not at all satisfied 24 X 1 24

Total 1472 5442

Standard of cleanliness - resident satisfaction calculation:  5442÷ 1472 = 3.70

The following is a guide to the assessment of Biffa on customer satisfaction for the standard 
of cleanliness of the streets and pavements:

Score <3.0 3.0 – 3.399 3.4 – 3.899 3.9 – 4.299 4.3 – 5.0
Classification Poor Weak Fair Good Excellent

Page 24



18

The combined overall customer satisfaction rating for the waste and recycling collection 
service and standard of cleanliness is calculated as follows:

Residents total scores ÷ number of residents 

                   (8840 +5442) ÷ (2200 + 1472) = 3.89

                        
The following is a guide to the assessment of Biffa on overall customer satisfaction for the 
street cleaning and refuse collection:

Score <3.0 3.0 – 3.399 3.4 – 3.899 3.9 – 4.299 4.3 – 5.0
Classification Poor Weak Fair Good Excellent

Taking into account that 84 per cent of residents are satisfied or very satisfied with the 
waste collection service, the relatively small number of complaints received and that the 
combined overall satisfaction rating score is only 0.01 point away from a good rating the 
head of service has made a judgement on customer satisfaction as follows:

Overall assessment good
(refer to points 46-48 in the report)

Page 25



19

Annex C – Councils satisfaction
This assessment allows the councils (as a client) to record its own satisfaction with aspects 
of a contractor’s performance which lie outside Key Performance Targets and customer 
satisfaction.  Each officer with direct knowledge and who frequently interacts with the 
contractor should complete this form.  Some questions can be left blank if the officer does 
not have direct knowledge of that particular question.

The numbers indicated in the following table are the total number of responses received for 
each question

Contractor Biffa Municipal Ltd

From (date) 1 January 2019 To 31 December 2019

SERVICE DELIVERY
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatisfied

1 Understanding of the client's needs 2 6 2

2 Response time 1 6 3

3 Delivers to time 5 4

4 Delivers to budget 2 1

5 Efficiency of invoicing 1 2

6 Approach to health & safety 2 7 1

COMMUNICATIONS AND RELATIONS
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatisfied

9 Easy to deal with 3 7

10 Communications / keeping the client informed 2 6 2

11 Quality of written documentation 4 4 1

12 Compliance with councils corporate identity 2 2

13 Listening 1 6 3

14 Quality of relationship 2 7 1

Page 26



20

IMPROVEMENT AND INNOVATION
Attribute (5) Very 

satisfied
(4) 
Satisfied

(3) 
Neither

(2) Dis-
satisfied

(1) Very 
dissatisfied

15 Offers suggestions beyond the scope of work 4

16 Degree of innovation 4

17 Goes the extra mile 1 9

18 Supports the councils sustainability objectives 2 1

19 Supports the councils equality objectives 3 1

20 Degree of partnership working 2 2

The following table is a summary of councils satisfaction based on the completed 
questionnaires

Rating Responses Score 
equivalent

Total

very satisfied 26 X 5 130
satisfied 82 X 4 328
neither satisfied or 
dissatisfied

18 X 3 54

dissatisfied 1 X 2 2
very dissatisfied 0 X 1 0

Total 127 514

The overall councils satisfaction is calculated as follows:  
         Councils total score ÷ number of responses

          514 ÷ 127 = 4.05 

The following is a guide to the assessment of Biffa on overall councils satisfaction 
 
Score <3.0 3.0 – 3.399 3.4 – 3.899 3.9 – 4.299 4.3 – 5.0
Classification Poor Weak Fair Good Excellent

the head of service has made a judgement on customer satisfaction as follows:
                                                                            Overall assessment good

  (refer to point 51 - 53 in the report) 

Page 27



21

STRENGTHS AND AREAS FOR IMPROVEMENT
Strengths I feel staff work hard under very pressured conditions.  Good 

friendly and approachable staff.
Depot staff always willing to help with time sensitive tasks and 
queries
Commitment of individual staff members/supervisors

Communication on updates re access issues/depot updates

Working relationship, easy to communicate with and quick 
resolution of issues.
Partnership working willingness to listen to our concerns and 
agree remedies
Innovation to assist in difficult fly tip clearance

Low missed collections overall

Supervisor flexibility to assist

Professionalism of managers and positive relationships with the 
councils waste team
Service delivery is good overall

Areas for improvement Insufficient number of supervisory staff – staff too stretched with 
workload leading to errors.
Response to emails could be quicker from supervisors

Covering supervisors emails/work when on holiday/sick.

Better training at call centre – service knowledge and writing 
emails, making sure complaints do not escalate by better 
handling of first contact.
Repeat missed collections – there are few however when they 
occur, they result in customer dis-satisfaction.  Need to identify 
and deal with the cause.
Follow enforcement policies e.g. tagging contaminated bins, not 
taking refuse side waste 
Supervisors need to have better communication with the crews 
while on rounds

Page 28



22

Annex D - Contractor 360° feedback 
CONTRACTOR’S REACTION / FEEDBACK ON COUNCILS ASSESSMENT

Page 29



23

Biffa maintain tremendous pride in the services we have provided in South Oxfordshire and 
the Vale of White Horse since the contract started in 2009; as well as the excellent 
relationship we have developed with the councils and the excellent profile we have 
developed for the contract in that time, in partnership. 

2017 performance was poor; 2018 showed improvement, 2019 continues that improving 
trend.  In 2019 we advised the improvements made in autumn 2018 were sustainable –
happily, this has been the case. . 

Our improvement focus is now channelled on:

1. Reducing missed bins; 

2. Reducing missed assisted

3. Food waste collections

The former is completely self-fulfilling because, as a commercial organisation, we strive for 
the lowest service cost; and that is achieved by achieving 100% right first time collections. 
Whilst that is not practical over a sustained period, it is always our aim. We have invested 
heavily in further crew PDAs, and have improved daily usage of these, although we accept 
further work is required.   

Due to re-organisation of contract portfolio holders within the business, Debbie Doohan, 
regional general manager has moved to other areas.  Andrew Dutton, regional general 
manager, became responsible for the contract from April 2020.  Andrew has 20 years’ 
experience in senior roles, 13 years of which have been completed in the waste industry.  
Andrew and Francis will be working closely to ensure that the service standards reach and 
exceed, where ever possible, the contractual KPTs.  

KPT 1 – Missed Collections

Biffa is continuing to work hard to achieve further improvements in the future and we hope 
the members take comfort in the improvement shown from 2018 to 2019.  It is important to 
note that the WEEE and textile collections are not included within the calculations.  

KPT 2 – Rectification of missed collections 

Rectification of missed bins has significantly improved, with a 2018 performance of 84% 
comparing with 2019’s 99.47%.  Whilst this has not met the KPI of 100%, it is a real 
improvement and one which benefits the residents.  

KPT 3 – Biffa are proud to assist South Oxford & Vale of White Horse district councils in 
delivering an exceptional performance in this area, and hope to continue to do so.  

KPT 4 – Both litter and detritus levels have fallen, which is very pleasing.  However detritus 
remains higher than we would like, which will be focused upon moving forward.

KPT 5 – Incomplete rounds – performance in this area is pleasing, with 50 recorded against 
a 1,000 KPI.

KPT 6 – Call centre – average time residents spend on hold before the call is answered

Page 30



24

ANY AREAS WHERE CONTRACTOR DISAGREES WITH ASSESSMENT

None

WHAT COULD / SHOULD THE COUNCILS DO DIFFERENTLY TO ENABLE THE 
CONTRACTOR TO DELIVER THE SERVICE MORE EFFICIENTLY / 
EFFECTIVELY / ECONOMICALLY?

Nothing identified

Feedback provided by Francis Drew Date 31-07-2020

The hard work in reducing waiting time in 2018 continued into 2019, which has been 
rewarded with a much improved KPI.

KPT 7 & 8 Bin Delivery

98% and 99% is a pleasing result and a real improvement on 2018.  Our focus will be on 
maintaining these results.  

KPT 9 & 10 Fly tipping

100% and 99.5% are very pleasing results and Biffa commit to maintaining these high 
standards.  

The national trend for increasing fly tips continues.  We have reacted to this increase in a 
positive manner, building on a robust procedure.  

Summary

In 2019 we committed to strengthening the management structure, which we have done by 
appointing a Deputy Operations Manager, as well as completing the Supervisor team.  This 
allows us to build further on 2019’s KPI for the future.

We have identified the repeat complaints as an area of weakness, which we look to improve 
for future.

 

Page 31



Joint Scrutiny Committee

AGENDA ITEMReport of Head of Housing and Environment
Author: Diane Foster (Licensing and Community Safety Manager) and 
Karen Brown (Community Safety Team Leader)
Telephone number: Diane Foster 01235 422116
Karen Brown 01235 422592

Email: 
Diane.foster@southandvale.gov.uk  or  karen.brown@southandvale.gov.uk 

Cabinet members responsible: 
South Oxfordshire – Cllr David Rouane
E-mail: David.Rouane@southoxon.gov.uk
Vale of White Horse – Cllr Helen Pighills 
E-mail: Helen.Pighills@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
To: Joint Scrutiny Committee
DATE: 21 September 2020

South and Vale Community Safety 
Partnership – performance report

Recommendations

(a) To note the progress that the South and Vale Community Safety Partnership 
(CSP) made in 2019/20 in delivering its priorities and statutory functions  

(b) To support the CSP’s view that the 2020/21 plan will continue to deliver core 
priorities and statutory functions and focus on these three key priorities:

 tackling domestic violence and abuse, including early intervention to reduce 
harm and improving services for victims

 working with vulnerable people and children to reduce the likelihood of being 
exploited

 reducing knife crime and harm and vulnerability caused by drugs and alcohol

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 32

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Diane.foster@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:karen.brown@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:David.Rouane@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:Helen.Pighills@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Purpose of Report

1. The main purpose of this report is to update the scrutiny committee on the 
progress that the South and Vale Community Safety Partnership (CSP) is 
making to reduce crime and the fear of crime, focusing on the benefits it 
generates for residents, businesses and partner agencies in the two districts.  

Background

PURPOSE AND STRUCTURE OF THE CSP
2. The CSP was formed in April 2011, bringing together the two-existing district 

CSPs that were created in accordance with the requirements of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998.  This was done so that the partnership was coterminous 
with the local police area and mirrored the shared working across the district 
councils. 

3. Under the umbrella of the CSP, a wide variety of local agencies work together 
to maintain low levels of crime and protect vulnerable people in both districts 
to ensure residents feel safe and stay safe.

4. The CSP involves the community safety portfolio holders from both district 
councils and officers representing: 

  South Oxfordshire District Council
  Vale of White Horse District Council
  Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
  Oxfordshire County Council (OCC)
  Thames Valley Police (TVP)
  National Probation Service 
  Sovereign Housing Association
  Soha Housing
  Oxfordshire University Hospital Trust
  Oxfordshire County Council Fire & Rescue Service

5. The CSP has a statutory duty to develop and publish a plan which sets out its 
priorities, actions and measures.  The 2020/21 plan is attached as Appendix 
A.  When drafting the plan and to meet our statutory duties, we review 
information from the Oxfordshire Strategic Intelligence Assessment along with 
the Thames Valley Police and Crime Commissioner’s (PCC) plan and consult 
with numerous agencies. The Oxfordshire Strategic Intelligence Assessment 
is attached as Appendix B. 

6. The CSP has a statutory duty to monitor the effectiveness of its plan which is 
does through quarterly performance reports that are reviewed at quarterly 
meetings.

RESOURCES TO SUPPORT THE DELIVERY OF CSP PRIORITIES

7. To help the CSP deliver its priorities and statutory duties, it receives funding 
from the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC).  This income stream is not 
secure and is agreed on an annual basis.  The CSP’s 2019/20 grant funding 
from the PCC was £106,846. This same amount has been confirmed for 
2020/21.

Page 33



8. The CSP uses the funding to support local projects that it believes will help to 
deliver its priorities.  Managed by the districts’ community safety team, this 
involves overseeing the CSP grant application process, drafting Service Level 
Agreements (SLAs), monitoring contract compliance and running the CSP 
budget group to ensure accountability and proper governance.  In 2019/20, 
the community safety team managed SLAs on behalf of the CSP for a range 
of projects, including outreach and diversionary projects for young people who 
are vulnerable and displaying ‘risky behaviours’ and the small repairs scheme 
run by Mears that helps people who have been a victim of crime remain and 
feel safe in their own homes.

9. The CSP financial summary for 2019/20 can be found in Appendix C.

DELIVERING THE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP’S 
PRIORITIES AND STATUTORY DUTIES – SUMMARY OF KEY AREAS 
OF WORK IN 2019/20

Vulnerability:  Managing demand on service through working 
together

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR

10. There are a number of statutory functions relating to anti-social behaviour 
(ASB) that the community safety team is responsible for delivering:

Statutory responsibility Relevant legislation
Public Spaces Protection Orders (currently in 
place in Thame, Abingdon and Henley) to 
tackle anti-social behaviour
see paragraph 33

Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014

On behalf of the CSP, managing the 
Community Trigger process 
see paragraph 15

Managing the process for the issuing 
Community Protection Notices (non-noise 
related) 
see paragraph 17

Supporting police applications for Closure 
Orders 
see paragraph 35

Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014

11. If residents don’t feel able to report ASB directly to the police, they can contact 
the district councils’ community safety team by telephone, email, website 
report form or in person to report the incident.  The issues reported to the 

Page 34



team are varied and complex.  They range from neighbour disputes to abuse 
and harassment.  We investigate, and risk assess cases, working in 
partnership with relevant agencies and provide updates to the complainant 
until the issue has been resolved.  This service provides residents who are 
unable or unwilling to report ASB to the police with an effective alternative 
reporting option.  The community safety team works to ensure that appropriate 
and joined up action is taken by agencies to resolve cases.

ASB case study 

A housing officer from Soha contacted the community safety team for assistance with 
an ongoing neighbour dispute their tenant was having with a private resident. The 
dispute initially stemmed from a parking issue in the close but had further escalated to 
verbal abuse and physical confrontations. The team worked closely with Soha to devise 
a plan to manage the expectations of those involved and help diffuse tensions. Advisory 
letters were sent out to both parties, providing general advice on parking in the close 
and asking them to be respectful to their neighbours. Since this intervention, no further 
complaints have been received by Soha or the district council. The original complainant 
contacted the community safety team to thank the case officer for his involvement and 
detailed that they are now back on good terms with their neighbours and the issues 
have been resolved.

12. In addition, the CSP helps to fund local community-based projects that aim to 
improve young people’s resilience and divert them away from committing 
ASB. Funding has been provided to Didcot Train, Nomad in Henley, Thame 
Youth Café and DAMASCUS who cover South Abingdon and surrounding 
villages.

Outcomes from a CSP funded ASB diversionary project in Didcot (names have been 
changed to protect the individual’s identity)

TRAIN have been working with Charlotte for just over a year and a half.  Charlotte’s 
family background is complex and there have been various concerns raised over the years 
to the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) and Locality and Community Support 
Service (LCSS).  The young person’s case does not meet the threshold for a Child 
Protection Plan and the family have refused to engage in a Child In Need plan, a voluntary 
process.  Charlotte has been involved in inappropriate and unhealthy relationships, 
antisocial behaviour and uses alcohol and drugs.  Her peer group are not supportive of 
each other, tending to exacerbate difficult situations rather than helping one another.  
Charlotte attends TRAIN’s Young Women’s group regularly where a broad range of topics 
are covered to support them and all other attendees in developing confidence, resilience 
and attitudes towards one another.  

During a recent session Charlotte told the team about a significant safeguarding incident 
which had happened during the February holidays.  Through her disclosure, all relevant 
services were notified, and measures were put in place to ensure the safety and 
wellbeing of the young person and of other young people.  Charlotte was initially not 
happy about staff intervening but when explained to her, she understood it was the right 
action to take.  Her rapport has remained as positive as ever with the team since.  It is 

Page 35



very important that young people have the trust in the staff and the confidence in 
themselves to disclose incidents.
  
In addition to this, through engaging in more positive activities through TRAIN including 
the Young Women’s Group and other complimentary provisions, Charlotte’s use of drugs 
and alcohol appears to have decreased significantly over the course of the last year.  As 
well as attending provision consistently, she is also engaging more at school.  

13. The community safety team is responsible for running Joint Tasking Meetings 
(JTM). These meetings maximise partnership working to make best use of 
resources.  They problem solve complex cases to support the most vulnerable 
people in our community.  Officers from Thames Valley Police, Community 
Safety, Adult Social Care, Children’s Social Care, Environmental Health, 
Housing, Soha, Sovereign Vale, Mental Health, Fire & Rescue, Trading 
Standards and other agencies share resources, knowledge and data on a 
monthly basis to support:

 repeat victims of ASB
 medium/high risk ASB victims
 families in need of intervention to avoid ASB
 domestic abuse victims
 prolific offenders
 vulnerable individuals (e.g. homeless individuals, repeat missing young 

persons, individuals at risk of radicalisation, concerns of child 
exploitation)

 individuals with complex needs that do not meet the threshold for a 
safeguarding referral

Joint Tasking Meeting Case Study One 

The community safety team received reports from a resident that were initially about 
anti-social behaviour; a teenager having loud parties at a neighbouring property, with no 
adult present. When discussing this with the complainant, the team were also able to 
ascertain that they were also concerned about drug use at the house and possible 
domestic disputes between the teenager and an adult male who was a regular visitor. 

By bringing this case to JTM, we were able to:
 Confirm the details of the young person involved and the owner of the property 

in question (grandparent)

 Ensure that Children’s Social Care and the teenager’s social worker were aware 
of the issues 

 Confirm that suitable care and accommodation arrangements were in place to 
protect the teenager

The young person was found a private fostering arrangement and relevant support was 
provided through Children’s Social Care. No further reports of ASB were received.

Page 36



Joint Tasking Meeting Case Study Two 

Our housing needs team were concerned about the welfare of three young children who 
were in the care of their father but being exposed to potentially harmful behaviours and 
did not seem to have adequate accommodation. 

The case was discussed at JTM and we were able to seek support from the police to 
address any immediate safety concerns relating to the children. We also made Wiltshire 
Children’s Social Care (the authority responsible for the children) aware of the issues 
being raised by our housing team and the police and sought confirmation about the 
actions they were taking to protect the children, including addressing the 
accommodation concerns.

As a result of this multi-agency approach, we are confident that the case is being 
managed by the relevant social services team; the children are attending school, living in 
suitable and safe accommodation and their father is receiving support for his substance 
issues. Agencies are continuing to monitor the situation and now know who to contact 
directly within relevant organisations if they have any concerns.

14. The two community safety officer’s co-ordinate and chair monthly ASB 
neighbourhood meetings across the local police areas to ensure they are 
accountable, effective and inclusive of relevant agencies.  

Data to help demonstrate the added value of the multi-agency South and Vale ASB NH 
(Neighbourhood) meetings in 2019/20

 Number of meetings held across the four neighbourhood areas - 36:

o 8 - Abingdon

o 7 - Didcot and Wallingford

o 11 - Wantage and Faringdon

o 10 - Thame and Henley

 Total number of cases raised at all ASB NH meetings – 116

 Number of cases resolved - 86 (the remaining were considered ‘on-going’ on 31 
March 2020 ).

 Consistant multi-agency engagement at all meetings, involving the police, the 
district councils’ community safety and environmental protection teams and 
numerous registered providers (e.g. Sovereign, Soha, TVH, Green Square, 
Catalyst). 

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



15. The CSP has a legal duty to provide a Community Trigger, in accordance with 
the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.  This mechanism 
gives victims and communities the right to require agencies to review cases of 
persistent anti-social behaviour if they feel the issues have not been properly 
addressed already.  The trigger could be activated by a member of the public, 
a community or a business.  Rather than set up a new panel, the CSP use 
JTM as the ASB case review panel for the statutory Community Trigger 
process which maximises resources and ensures that information is properly 
shared across a broad range of agencies.  The Community Trigger process is 
managed by the community safety team and we received six triggers last 
year:  

Community Trigger case study (Vale) 

This Community Trigger was raised by a resident who was being affected by the actions 
of their neighbour smoking cannabis and causing a noise nuisance.  As a result of the 
Community Trigger, Environmental Health investigated the noise complaint and found 
no statutory nuisance.  A joint visit to the premises by the police, social care and the 
landlord resulted in a warning being issued.  The subject is proactively working with 
social care and drug services for support and no further complaints have been received.  

Community Trigger Case Study (South) 

This Community Trigger focused mainly on neighbour noise nuisance but the person 
requesting the Trigger was also concerned about the threatening and intimidating 
behaviour and verbal abuse of their neighbour.  The main benefit of the Community 
Trigger was that the CSP was able to document and confirm with the complainant that a 
wide variety of agencies (including the police, Environmental Health and  Soha Housing) 
had significant and on-going involvement in trying to address the anti-social behaviour 

Page 41



and welfare concerns raised in the Trigger.  

The Trigger was able to identify that South Oxon Adult Mental Health Team had 
previously worked with the neighbour and had diagnosed a personality disorder.  Soha 
then worked with the neighbour to engage with mental health services and their GP for 
support.  Joint visits were carried out by the police and Soha to both neighbours to keep 
the peace.  Environmental Health investigated the noise nuisance and no statutory 
nuisance was found.   No further incidents have been reported to the community safety 
team.

16. The action plans for all Triggers have been completed and to date, the 
community safety team has not received any further reports regarding these 
cases, and they have not been raised by other partner agencies at the 
monthly ASB neighbourhood meetings.

17. The community safety officers work closely with partners to deliver warnings 
to offenders whose behaviour has a detrimental impact on others.  Failure to 
comply may result in a Community Protection Notice being served.  Two 
community protection warnings were delivered by the community safety team 
in 2019/20 for a neighbour dispute.     

18. The community safety team co-ordinate the installation of guardcams (covert 
cameras) in response to incidents of ASB, burglary and domestic abuse.  The 
device is normally put in place for up to three months to capture future 
incidents and provide additional security and reassurance.  After three months 
the situation is reviewed with the referring agency and resident.  Unless there 
is a particular need to keep the camera in place, the resident can purchase 
the device from the CSP, or it will be removed for use at another property.   
It’s hard to gauge the degree to which the guardcams contributed to the 
resolution of the issue(s) but we do know that they provide reassurance to 
residents who want to feel safe remaining in their own homes.  During 
2019/20, the community safety team has done a significant amount of work to 
improve the process of managing the guardcams and the cameras we loan to 
Soha and Sovereign are installed and returned as efficiently as possible.  In 
addition, there is a clear audit trail in place and the community safety team is 
responsible for retrieving and reviewing any evidence captured.  This enables 
our team to log those cameras which have captured evidence which we can 
then share with the CSP.  A total of 49 cameras were installed in 2019/20 
compared to 66 in 2018/19 and 18 in 2017/18. 12 people chose to retain their 
cameras and purchased them from the CSP.  Feedback from one of the 
residents who purchased a camera described how he was very happy with the 
service he received from both the community safety team and the contractor 
who installed the camera, and how much safer he felt for knowing it was there.

Page 42



Guard Cam Installations 2019/20

19. The community safety team co-ordinate the Safe Places scheme in 
partnership with multi agencies, such as the police, fire and rescue, 
Oxfordshire Family Support Network and local businesses.  The scheme helps 
vulnerable people feel confident and safe whilst out in the community.  If 
someone feels they are being abused or harassed whilst they are out in the 
community, they have a safe place to go.  Window stickers are displayed in 
public places such as shops, libraries and community centres to identify 
themselves as Safe Places.  The scheme was launched in the town centres of 
Wallingford in 2017 followed by Didcot, Henley, Thame and Abingdon in 2018 
and Faringdon and Wantage in 2019.  All leisure centres across South and 
Vale also signed up to the scheme in 2019.

20. A review of the premises who are supporting the scheme was carried out in 
2019/20.  Below are some examples of where staff provided assistance to 
members of the public:

 a female in her fifties who has Down’s Syndrome was verbally abused 
by a road user. The safe place contacted her social worker and a local 
PCSO.

 a distressed 30-year-old male with learning difficulties had become lost 
in town. Staff were able to calm him, provide reassurance and offer 
directions.

 one safe place in Abingdon was subject to several visits from a lady 
with mental health issues, where she was demanding and verbally 
abusive. Staff sought advice from the police and the adult mental health 
team. Staff were advised on the action to take, due to concerns around 
the lady’s care and support needs. No further issues have been 
reported to date. 

Page 43



21. Feedback from staff has shown they are proud to tell their customers they are 
part of the scheme and would like the scheme to promoted more in order to 
raise awareness of the added value this scheme brings to the whole 
community.  The team aim to raise awareness in local newsletters in 2020/21.

DOMESTIC ABUSE

22. The CSP provides funding to the Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Service 
(ODAS) to deliver outreach and support for women, men and children whose 
lives have been disrupted by domestic abuse in South and Vale.  In 2018/19 
A2 Dominion and Reducing the Risk were awarded the contract to deliver this 
service for the whole county and West Berkshire.  In addition to outreach, they 
set up and run support groups and enable those in need to draw upon a range 
of resources, for example, providing a local help-line service (0800 731 0055) 
and refuge accommodation.  In 2019/20, the service received a total of 1,892 
calls to their helpline of which 312 were from residents in South and Vale.  762 
callers chose not to disclose their location and 316 were out of area. Most of 
the calls received came from women and where callers disclosed their age, 
the largest proportion of callers were between 35 to 49 years old.  Every 
helpline call receives safety planning, emotional support, signposting support 
to relevant services (housing, legal support, counselling) and help to access 
emergency orders. The main objective of outreach is to support people to 
reduce the risk towards them and to help them achieve independence, either 
through orders or going to refuge/places of safety.  A total of 80 outreach 
assessments were carried out in quarter four, 2019/20.  Of these 24 were for 
South Oxfordshire and 11 for Vale of White Horse, compared to 20 for Oxford 
City, 14 for West Oxfordshire and 11 for Cherwell.  The majority of referrals 
came from victims themselves, which highlights the importance of the 
continued need to raise awareness of domestic abuse services to ensure 
victims know who to contact for help and support.  The community safety team 
promote the helpline number on the district councils’ webpages and through 
social media.

23. The CSP continue to provide support to victims of domestic abuse by co-
ordinating sanctuary scheme works to help vulnerable victims of crime stay 
and feel safe in their own homes.  In 2019/20 the community safety team co-
ordinated 42 referrals compared to 55 in 2018/19 and 44 in 2017/18. 

Page 44



Sanctuary Scheme referrals received in 2018/19 and 2019/20

 

24. The CSP also fund a small repairs/target hardening service to help those at 
risk of domestic abuse and victims of burglary stay and feel safe in their own 
home.  Security works for 23 properties were carried out in 2019/20 compared 
to 43 properties in 2018/19 and 33 in 2017/18.  For example, a change of 
locks, fire-proof letter boxes, or covert guard cameras.  These additional 
security works provide comfort for the resident enabling them to feel safe in 
their own home.  A total of £2,316 was spent on target hardening in 2019/20, 
of which £1,485 was spent on domestic abuse and £831 on burglary (cost 
excludes covert guard cameras)

Page 45



25.The CSP has a statutory duty to conduct Domestic Homicide Reviews 
(DHRs) under the Domestic Violence, Crime and Victims Act 2004.  A 
Domestic Homicide Review (DHR) is a multi-agency review of the 
circumstances in which the death of a person aged 16 or over has, or 
appears to have, resulted from violence, abuse or neglect by a person to 
whom they were related or with whom they were, or had been, in an 
intimate personal relationship, or a member of the same household as 
themselves. The main aim of a review is to establish what lessons can be 
learned regarding the way in which local professionals and organisations 
work individually and together to safeguard victims.  The community safety 
team is responsible for managing the DHR process and providing 
administrative support. 

DHR Date Update 

Thame (two murders, one 
attempted murder)

2012/2013 Review approved by Home Office. 
Action plan completed

Joint Serious Case Review 
(SCR) and Domestic 
Homicide Review (DHR) 
Didcot 

2013/14 Review approved by Home Office. 
Action plan completed

Hales Meadow 
(manslaughter)

2014 Home Office requested further 
amendments to this review.  Report 
resubmitted to Home Office in August 
2020

Didcot (three murders) 2015 Review approved by Home Office.  
Action plan completed

Number of properties secured and average cost per works

Number of properties 
secured

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Burglary 3 1 7 3
Domestic Abuse 2 3 3 1

5 4 10 4 Total 
2018/19Totals 2019/20

23 43

Average cost per works Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Burglary £85 £101 £46 £50

Domestic Abuse £87 £255 £162 £60
Total average spend per works £86 £217 £81 £53

Page 46



Watchfield (one victim) 2017 Review approved by Home Office. 
Action plan completed

26. Since their introduction in 2011, there have been twelve DHRs in Oxfordshire, 
four of these have taken place in South Oxfordshire and one in Vale of White 
Horse.  Oxford City has carried out four reviews, one has taken place in West 
Oxfordshire and two in Cherwell.

27. The community safety team promoted the ‘‘Don’t Disappear” domestic abuse 
campaign launched by the Office of the Police Crime Commissioner to raise 
awareness of coercive control and emotional abuse in relationships.  This 
message was promoted on the councils’ websites, Facebook and twitter 
pages and featured the Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse helpline number if 
someone needed support.   The video, ‘Don’t Disappear’ can be viewed here

MODERN SLAVERY 

28. From 1 November 2015, specific public authorities have a duty to notify the 
Secretary of State of any person identified in England and Wales as a 
suspected victim of slavery or human trafficking.  The CSP has developed a 
multi-agency approach to tackle exploitation with the introduction of an 
exploitation delivery plan for 2019/20.  This plan supported the Oxfordshire 
Violence and Vulnerability delivery plan and Oxfordshire Modern Slavery 
delivery plan.  This partnership approach aims to address the threat, harm and 
risk of County Drug Lines, local Organised Crime Groups, Child Drug 
Exploitation, Child/Adult Sexual Exploitation, Labour/Domestic Servitude 
Exploitation and Criminal Exploitation.  

Anti-Slavery Awareness Day – 18 October 2019

 The community safety team raised awareness of modern slavery using Geo 
Locate.  This app displays a message about modern slavery when users log on to 
social media in a certain location. These messages were used in high footfall areas 
such as Didcot Railway Station, Oxford Services in Wheatley and town centres.  
£500 paid for 50,000 messages. 

 Guidance on how to spot the signs and how to report any concerns about modern 
slavery featured in articles for both staff and councillors.  Modern slavery is 
covered in the safeguarding training delivered to all staff as part of their 
introduction or refresher training every three years.  In addition, the Willow 
Project, now part of Victims First, delivered modern slavery training to staff and 
partners (Soha).  59 people attended modern slavery training over the summer 
months. 72 per cent of attendees found the course to be excellent and 28 per 
cent felt the training was good.   As a result of the training 100 per cent of 
participants declared they know what modern slavery is, what their 
responsibilities are and how to report a concern.  Feedback from one attendee 
claimed the training was “Eye opening, relevant to our job role and excellent for 
raising our awareness”

Page 47

https://youtu.be/d6rt8w5HBWw
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2015/30/section/52/enacted


 The Safe Car Wash app and unseenuk.org were promoted through social media.  
The Safe Car Wash app has been developed to help gather information about car 
washes.  Whilst many hand car washes are legitimate businesses some of them 
are not.  Nationally the police have uncovered victims of modern slavery living in 
horrendous conditions and being made to work in car washes. The Safe Car Wash 
app allows users to respond to a checklist of key factors that may suggest modern 
slavery or labour exploitation in hand car washes. If after responding to the 
questions, there is a likelihood of modern slavery at the hand car wash, the user 
will be prompted to call the Modern Slavery Helpline on 08000 121 700.

RURAL CRIME

29. The community safety team support and chair the South and Vale quarterly 
rural crime meetings bringing partners, landowners and farmers together to 
reduce incidents of rural crime.  The police have access to the local rural 
crime ‘Whats App’ group which is made up of landowners, farmers and game 
keepers.  This enables them to communicate and keep each other informed of 
any unusual activity in their location, providing support to each other and a 
local link with the police.  During a week of action for rural crime in October 
2019, local police teams conducted ten partnership operations to detect and 
deter rural crime.  

30. A total of 16 arrests were made which led to four prosecutions.  Seven 
vehicles and 14 dogs were seized.  Messages were shared on social media 
that explained what rural crime is, how to protect against it and how to report a 
concern.  

BURGLARY 

31. The community safety team supports vulnerable people being a victim of 
burglary by funding smartwater kits.  Smartwater is a colourless liquid that 
contains a unique forensic code registered to an address and can be applied 
to valuable items discreetly.  If marked items are stolen and recovered by the 
police, the smartwater can be detected by a UV light and used to trace back to 
the owner.  When individuals are arrested in connection with burglary, they 
walk through a smartwater arch detector in custody.  This will reveal if they 
have been in contact with smartwater as this shows up on their skin and 
clothing.  The CSP funded 500 Smartwater kits in 2019/20 and these kits are 
issued in areas where there have been a series of burglaries.  The Henley 
police neighbourhood team issued Smartwater kits to victims of motor board 
thefts from boats along the River Thames, victims of burglary in Goring and 
concerned members of the public during a crime prevention event in Henley 
town centre.  In Didcot, where burglaries targeting family gold had occurred, 
police teams offered crime prevention advice and Smartwater kits to 19 
families.  The Abingdon neighbourhood police team visited over 200 premises 
from January to March following a series of burglaries targeting jewellery and 
family gold.  They provided crime prevention advice and Smartwater kits and 
as a result of these visits, the crime rate reduced from 13 burglaries in 14 
weeks to six burglaries in 21 weeks.  This equates to a 68.5 per cent 
reduction.  During March a total of 71 premises were visited in Kennington and 

Page 48



54 Smartwater kits distributed to tackle burglary.  As a result of this 
intervention, the crime rate reduced from eight burglaries in 26 weeks to zero 
burglaries in nine weeks.  

32. Feedback from users is always very positive and advice and Smartwater kits 
are well received.  These kits help empower residents, increase resilience and 
reduce vulnerability. To qualify for Smartwater status in an area, 80 per cent of 
homes need to be covered.  There are seven Smartwater streets in both 
Henley and Shrivenham, four streets in South Hinksey and eight in Cumnor.  
Signage is displayed to act as a deterrent to the opportunist thief.  If you know 
someone who has been a victim of burglary and would benefit from a 
Smartwater kit they can contact Thames Valley Police on 101 on online 
https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/cp/crime-prevention/ and ask to speak to a 
member of the local police neighbourhood team for their area.   

Prevention and Early Intervention:  Improving safeguarding in 
physical and virtual space

CYBERCRIME

33. The community safety team promote messages from Action Fraud and Get 
Safe Online through our social media platforms throughout the year.  The 
team shared social media messages on online-fraud prevention, how to spot 
an unsecure website and how to protect your personal data.  During the 
pandemic the team have promoted advice on how to protect against phishing 
emails and Covid-19 related scams to encourage residents to protect their 
identities and keep safe whilst online.

CHILD EXPLOITATION

34. The CSP support the priorities of the Oxfordshire Child Exploitation sub-group 
by implementing actions and recommendations from the group.  To tackle 
these priorities the community safety team co-ordinated and funded the local 
delivery of “Chelsea’s Story”, a hard-hitting play that shows how young people 
are can be groomed by adults for the purposes of sexual exploitation using 
various methods, ensnaring young people and eventually taking complete 
control and dominating their whole lives.  This play was delivered to staff and 
young people in ten South and Vale secondary schools in May 2019.  Over 
1500 students saw the play.  The schools match fund each production and 
plans are currently being drawn up to deliver the performance again when 
students are back at school.  

Evaluation results out of 686 responses:

 44 per cent of students were ‘very aware’ of the dangers of sexual exploitation 
before the production, 53 were ‘slightly aware’ and only three per cent were 
‘not aware’

 42 per cent of students knew ‘a lot’ about how to stay safe and protect 
themselves from CSE before the performance, with 53 per cent knowing ‘a little’ 

Page 49

https://www.thamesvalley.police.uk/cp/crime-prevention/


and only 5 per cent knowing ‘not much’

 All students found the play useful and feel they have the knowledge to stay safe 
and protect themselves from being sexual exploited

Feedback from students:

‘The play made me realise how young people can easily be exploited’

‘I will check my privacy settings on my phone and only talk to people I know’ 

‘I will share what I know to make sure my friends are aware’

FEMALE GENITAL MUTILATION (FGM)

35. The CSP support the ‘Oxford Against Cutting’ organisation to raise awareness 
of FGM to South and Vale communities for example local faith groups, 
schools and communities where FGM is a significant concern.  In April 2019, 
the CSP funded Oxford Against Cutting to deliver a ‘Afro-beats against FGM’, 
a workshop to include classroom activities and discussion, followed by an 
afro-beats dance workshop to embed the learning at Abingdon College. 11 
students aged between 13 and 20 attended the workshop.  Feedback from 
students found the session to be very informative with useful discussions and 
fun. 

HATE CRIME 

36. The community safety team helped set up 12 hate crime reporting centres in 
South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse in 2018/19 in partnership with 
Citizens Advice, Wantage Independent Advice Centre, Soha and Sovereign.  
If people don’t feel able to report hate crime/incidents to the police, this 
service provides them with an alternative where they can speak in confidence 
to a specially trained member of staff.  Staff will talk to the individual about the 
incident and can offer to report it to the police on their behalf.  They will also 
refer them to Victims First, a service dedicated to ensuring that victims or 
witnesses receive the support they need to cope with and recover from their 
experience.  In 2019/20, the councils’ community safety team encouraged 
people to report hate crime as part of the launch of the ‘Safe Places’ scheme 
in Didcot, Wallingford, Wantage and Faringdon and this included raising 
awareness of these local hate crime reporting centres in the districts. The 
team also contacted all the centres to request feedback from them about how 
the service was being used and if they needed any further support to help 
them deliver it effectively. Although the response was limited and it has 
therefore not been possible to draw any robust conclusions, this engagement 
has given the centres a direct link to the community safety team if they feel 
that they do need to contact us for any help, training or advice in the future.  
The district councils’ community safety team also co-ordinates the installation 
of guardcams (covert cameras) for vulnerable people in response to incidents 
of ASB, burglary, domestic abuse and other criminal activity. These cameras 
are funded by the CSP and have been installed to support victims of racial 
harassment during 2019/20.

Page 50



Reducing Re-offending:  Targeting and managing harm and risk

DRUGS AND ALCOHOL 

37. The community safety team support the licensing and responsible authority 
meetings, a multi-agency group that pools resources to tackle premises of 
concern, reduce late night violence and associated crime and disorder. 

Summary of enforcement action taken in 2019/20

 18 joint operations held between April to December 2019 with Immigration 
Enforcement and partners. 14 illegal workers found.  

 Trading Standards carried out a firework test purchase operation in November 
2019.  Five premises were visited in South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse 
and all premises passed.  

 between December 2019 and January 2020, Trading Standards conducted a knife 
sales operation where 18 premises were visited in South Oxfordshire and Vale of 
White Horse, four premises failed.  Formal written warnings and advice was 
provided, one seller received a caution and one premise was prosecuted.

38. The community safety team migrated the existing Designated Public      
Places Orders (DPPO) in Abingdon, Henley and Thame over to Public Spaces 
Protection Orders in 2018 as set out in the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014.  The Public Spaces Protection Order acts like a DPPO.  
However, in addition to alcohol related anti-social behaviour, it can also 
include a wider range of offences to help address other local anti-social 
behaviour issues that are persistent and having a significant, detrimental 
impact on the community.

Page 51



Town Public Spaces Protection Order

Abingdon 
(Active from 
July 2017)

 no person shall refuse to stop drinking alcohol or to surrender 
any container (sealed or unsealed) which is believed to 
contain alcohol, when required to do so by an authorised 
person.

 no person shall personally carry out or assist or encourage any 
other person to carry out any of the behaviours specified in 
(a) to (e) below at any time in the restricted area:

a) Revving of engine(s) (as to cause a nuisance to persons 
in the locality of the restricted area);
b) Repeated sudden and rapid acceleration (as to cause a 
nuisance to persons in the locality of the restricted area); 
c) Performing stunts (as to cause a nuisance to persons in 
the locality of the restricted area);
d) Sounding horns (as to cause a nuisance to persons in 
the locality of the restricted; 

e) Playing music in a motor vehicle (as to cause a nuisance to 
persons in the locality of the restricted area)

Henley 
(active from 
May 2018)

No person shall refuse to stop drinking alcohol or to surrender 
any container (sealed or unsealed) which is believed to contain 
alcohol, when required to do so by an authorised person.

Thame 
(active from 
May 2018)

 no person shall refuse to stop drinking alcohol or to surrender 
any container (sealed or unsealed) which is believed to 
contain alcohol, when required to do so by an authorised 
person.

 a person is prohibited from congregating in a group of three 
or more people within the restricted area after a constable or 
authorised person has requested that the group disperse. 

39. A Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) can last for up to three years, after 
which it must be reviewed.  Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, anecdotal 
evidence from the police (a critical stakeholder in relation to the PSPO as they 
enforce it) and information gathered by the district councils’ community safety 
team indicated that there was no longer a need for the Abingdon Order:

 alcohol related ASB and vehicle related noise nuisance were not 
significant issues that the police were having to respond to in Abingdon 
town;

 the police have other powers they can use to tackle these problems which 
are more proportionate and effective.

40. Based on this feedback, along with responses from a consultation with key 
stakeholders, the district council was not planning to extend or vary the Order.  
However, in response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Government has hanged 
the licensing laws to enable pubs and other licensed premises to sell alcohol 
for consumption off site.  The Business and Planning Act 2020 came into force 

Page 52



on 22 July and automatically extends the terms of on-sales alcohol licences to 
allow for off-sales. These changes will be in place until 30 September 2021.

41. The district council is concerned that these changes may lead to an increase 
in the prevalence of alcohol related ASB in public spaces and has therefore 
agreed to vary and extend the current Abingdon PSPO as follows:

 retain the conditions relating to alcohol consumption (section 1 of the 
existing Order) until 30 September 2021 so the police retain the power to 
tackle alcohol related ASB in a proportionate, swift and targeted way; 

 remove the conditions of the existing Order which relate to vehicle related 
ASB (section 2 of the existing Order)

42. The district councils’ community safety team contacted relevant key 
stakeholders to consult them on this change of approach and no concerns 
were raised.

Serious Organised Crime and Terrorism:  Improving the local 
response

SERIOUS ORGANISED CRIME

43. The CSP has developed a multi-agency tactical response to tackling 
Organised Crime Groups (OCGs) in South and Vale through the JTM 
meetings.  The police work in partnership with agencies to prevent and disrupt 
serious county drug lines in South and Vale market towns and through JTM a 
partnership approach has been adopted to identify and support local people 
vulnerable to being exploited by these gangs.  Closure orders are a tool that 
the police use to try and tackle the problem relating to abuse of vulnerable 
people and their properties.  The orders close down or restrict access to 
properties that are known to be used by drug gangs and the community safety 
team is consulted before the police apply to the courts.  In 2019/20, 35 closure 
orders have been issued by the police in South and Vale compared to four in 
2018/19 and 11 in 2017/18. The increase is due to greater knowledge of the 
benefits of closure orders by police officers and improved engagement with 
the courts.  The closure orders have a positive impact on residents as they 
give them back control over who can access their property.  

Page 53



44. These closure orders are often welcomed by vulnerable people whose lives 
have been taken over by organised crime groups.  The orders help victims 
feel protected and in addition with other security works, they feel safe in their 
own homes.  A breach of a closure order can result in a fine, imprisonment for 
up to three months, or both.

45. The Community Safety Manager attends the Safer Oxfordshire Partnership 
Co-ordination Group which meets quarterly to share information on current 
crime issues, priorities, and forward plans.  The group aims to identify any 
overlapping work streams and gaps ensuring that all boards and partnerships 
are clear where and how the main risks are being managed. 

TERRORISM

46. The CSP has agreed a Prevent action plan in accordance with Section 26 of 
the Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 which places a duty on local 
authorities to have “due regard to the need to prevent people from being 
drawn into terrorism”.  The Community Safety Manager attends the 
Oxfordshire Channel Panel meetings when a South or Vale referral is on the 
agenda.  Channel provides a mechanism for ensuring that individuals 
identified as vulnerable to radicalisation are referred to and assessed by a 
multi-agency panel which decides on the most appropriate support.  The 
Channel process uses existing partnership working between the police, local 
authorities, statutory partners, and the local community to support those who 
are vulnerable to being drawn into violent extremism by: identifying 
individuals and groups at risk of being recruited by violent extremists; 
assessing the nature and extent of that risk through multi-agency panels; and 

Page 54



referring cases to intervention providers (as required) to develop the most 
appropriate support package to safeguard the individual at risk. In addition, 
low level intelligence/cases of concern relating to Prevent (for example, 
protest marches, internet propaganda) are shared at monthly Joint Tasking 
Meetings and relevant partnership action is agreed.

Anticipated direction of travel for the CSP in 2019/20

47. The CSP receives all its funding directly from the PCC to support the delivery 
of his plan.  It is therefore important that we ensure that we take the PCC 
priorities into account when setting our own plan.  The South and Vale CSP 
2020/21 rolling action plan was signed off by CSP members in August 2020.

Financial Implications

48. The Safer Oxfordshire Partnership Co-ordination Group receives the funding 
for Oxfordshire and agrees the formula for allocation with partners.  The South 
and Vale CSP received £106,846 grant funding for 2019/20 and will receive 
the same amount for 2020/21.

Legal Implications

49. None

Risks

50. None

Other Implications

51. None.

Conclusion

52. The CSP continues to deliver projects to meet the needs of local communities 
and ensure that statutory functions are delivered.  The CSP will continue to 
focus on protecting and safeguarding vulnerable people.  

Background Papers

 Appendix A – South and Vale CSP Plan 2020/21
 Appendix B - Oxfordshire Strategic Intelligence Assessment 2019/20
 Appendix C – South and Vale CSP financial summary 2019/20 

Page 55



South and Vale
Community Safety Partnership 

Rolling annual plan 2020 - 21

Page 56



2

BACKGROUND

South and Vale Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 

Each year, the South and Vale Community Safety Partnership (CSP) produces an annual plan 
which sets out how partners will work proactively to address crime and protect vulnerable people 
in South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse over the coming year. 

The plan is informed by the Safer Oxfordshire Partnership Strategic Intelligent Assessment1 which 
looks at current data and trends over the previous year to identify priorities for Oxfordshire in 
preventing, reducing and tackling crime and disorder.  

South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse is one of the safest places to live and work in Thames 
Valley and we are focused on keeping it that way, working with local organisations to reduce harm 
and support local services.    

The mid-2018 population for South Oxfordshire estimated by the Office for National Statistics is 
140,500 and for Vale of White Horse 133,700.2  

The district of South Oxfordshire covers nearly 260 square miles.  Its boundary reaches from the 
edge of the City of Oxford in the north-west along the borders of Buckinghamshire and Berkshire 
to the outskirts of Reading in the south.  It has four main towns: Didcot, Henley, Thame and 
Wallingford, with Didcot becoming increasingly dominant as the main urban centre.  

1 https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/system/files/documents

2 https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/population-0

Page 57

https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/system/files/documents/Oxon%20SIA%202019%20May19%20FINAL.pdf
https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/population-0


3

The district of the Vale of White Horse whose name comes from the oldest chalk figure in Britain 
dating back to around 1000 BC stretches from the edge of Oxford to the edge of the Cotswolds.  
The district has three historic market towns, Abingdon, Faringdon and Wantage.  The area also 
covers Botley, located on the edge of Oxford, as well as the large village of Grove near Wantage.

The South and Vale CSP was created in accordance with the requirements of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998, which established the principles of partnership working. The partnership 
involves the community safety portfolio holders from both district councils and officers 
representing: 

 National Probation Service

 Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)

 Oxfordshire County Council

 Oxfordshire County Council Fire & Rescue Service

 Soha Housing Limited

 South Oxfordshire District Council

 Sovereign Housing Association

 Thames Valley Police

 Vale of White Horse District Council 

Page 58



4

Working with the Thames Valley Police and Crime Commissioner

The Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) refreshed the Police and Crime Plan for the Thames 
Valley 2017-2021.  The primary aims of this plan are to reduce crime and catch those that offend, 
and these are laid out under the following five themes:  

 Vulnerability 

 Prevention and Early Intervention 

 Reducing Re-offending 

 Serious Organised Crime and Terrorism 

 Police Ethics and Reform

The CSP receives funding from the PCC to support the delivery of his plan.  We therefore ensure 
that we take the PCC priorities into account when setting our own plan. 

The South and Vale CSP annual rolling plan

For 2020-21 the CSP will focus on the following objectives in the refreshed PCC’s Police and 
Crime Plan 2017-21:

 manage demand on services through working together 

 improve safeguarding in physical and virtual spaces

 target and manage harm and risk 

 improve the local response to serious organised crime and terrorism 

In addition to delivering these objectives through our core areas of work; anti-social behaviour, 
hate crime, rural crime, burglary, fraud and cyber-crime, and terrorism, the CSP will focus on 
three key priorities:

1. Tackling domestic violence and abuse, including early intervention to reduce harm and 
improving services for victims

2. Working with vulnerable people and children to reduce the likelihood of being exploited

3. Reducing knife crime and harm and vulnerability caused by drugs and alcohol 

Each of these three priorities has an explanatory introduction and a set of key actions – please 
refer to page six.  An action plan will be developed for each of these priorities to establish clear 
measures so we can track the delivery and impact of our plan.  We will deploy our Community 
Safety grant from the Police and Crime Commissioner to support these priorities and continue to 
invest in early interventions to prevent harm developing.  

Page 59



5

In addition to our established statutory duties, we will continue to measure crime data and will 
respond to any increases in demand.  The CSP will review its performance on a quarterly basis, 
agree any remedial action necessary and provide an annual report to the district councils’ joint 
scrutiny committee.

Crime Data 

Over the past twelve months, recorded crime in South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse has 
increased by 8.9 percent, an increase of 1,060 crimes (excluding fraud). Total of recorded crime 
for 2019/20 is 12,928. A total of 9,824 crimes were recorded in 2016/17, 11,120 in 2017/18 and 
11,868 were recorded in 2018/19.  The increase is reflected nationally and is largely attributed to 
improvements in compliance with National Crime Recording Standards, following 
recommendations made by Her Majesty’s Inspectorate to all police forces in 2014. The reasons for 
variations in crime data from year to year can be complex. As often is the case, some of this is 
down to changes in crime recording and how police capture that information. However, there are 
some increases in crime types, as well as increased victim confidence in reporting certain types of 
offences. 

The chart below shows the public perception of the fear of crime measured by district councils’ 
resident’s surveys every two years from 2012 to 2018. 

PREVIOUS ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2019-20

2019–20 has been another busy year for the South and Vale CSP, which has been successfully 
operating as a single Partnership since April 2011.  For examples of some of the activities that the 
CSP supported, please see the CSP’s annual report to Joint Scrutiny Committee 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk,www.southoxon.gov.uk

2012 2014 2016 2018
Base size: 1,100 South Vale South Vale South Vale South Vale

Safe in the day (%) -- 96% 99% 99% 98% 98% 98% 98%
Safe after dark (%) -- 93% 84% 90% 82% 79% 91% 91%

Page 60

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


6

PRIORITY 1: Tackling domestic violence and abuse, 
including early intervention to reduce harm and improving 
services for victims

Domestic abuse is any incident or pattern of incidents of controlling, coercive, 
threatening, degrading and violent behaviour, including sexual violence, in the 
majority of cases by a partner or ex-partner, but also by a family member or carer.
The abuse can encompass (but is not limited to): psychological; physical; sexual; 
financial; emotional: online or digital abuse.

Why is it a priority?  

Domestic Violence and Abuse (DVA) makes up a significant proportion of violent 
crime, as well as causing long lasting harm in families, and remains a priority for the 
Partnership.  There are high numbers of children living in abusive homes.  Despite 
under-reporting, the number of incidents which come to the attention of services is 
high.  There are cycles of repeat offending and repeat victimisation and only a small 
fraction of perpetrators are convicted.  We know that the long-term impact of 
experiencing domestic or sexual violence and abuse, whether directly or indirectly 
within a family situation, as an adult or as a child, can have a devastating effect on 
people’s ability to cope throughout their life.  

In Oxfordshire in 2019, Thames Valley Police recorded a total of 11,779 victims of 
domestic abuse crimes and incidents (+2% compared with 2018).  South Oxfordshire 
had the greatest increase (+6%).  Just over half of victims of domestic abuse were 
subject to repeat occurrences in Oxfordshire in 2019 and over 1 in 10 were victims 
more than 5 times in the year.  76 per cent of victims were female and 24 per cent 
were male.  

What we plan to do

We will:

 fund the Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Service to deliver outreach and support 
locally for victims of DVA 

 fund and co-ordinate sanctuary scheme works for victims of DVA in South and 
Vale3 - to provide a rapid response to enable people to feel safe in their 
homes and avert homelessness

 focus on early intervention and prevention, raising awareness of domestic 
abuse pathways, how to spot the signs and how to respond to abuse as a 
victim, witness or a concerned person

3 Mears – for more information about the small repairs/target hardening service, visit 
http://www.mearsgroup.co.uk/social-housing/home-improvements/oxfordshire/  

Page 61

http://www.mearsgroup.co.uk/social-housing/home-improvements/oxfordshire/


7

PRIORITY 2: Working with vulnerable people to reduce the 
likelihood of being exploited. 

Why is it a priority?

Exploitation can have a devastating effect on the physical and mental health of 
individuals, their families and communities.  Traumatic and adverse experiences, 
especially in childhood, can have lasting effect and make the individual more 
susceptible to harm in later life. 

Crimes involving exploitation often involve the criminal exploitation of vulnerable 
people, both adults and children on a physical, sexual or financial basis.  Gang 
activity based around ‘county lines’, where drug dealers from elsewhere set up in 
local areas, leads to anti-social behaviour, violence and safeguarding concerns. 
Thames Valley Police is the second highest reporting police force for modern slavery 
incidents. In 2019, Thames Valley Police recorded 168 victims of Modern Slavery in 
Oxfordshire, above the number recorded in 2018 (144).  Reports of child abuse and 
exploitation continue to be a significant concern. 

What we plan to do

We will:

 work with communities to improve general awareness of the signs of possible 
harm including child and adult exploitation and what action to take; and 
improve victim confidence to report issues 

 protect vulnerable adults who are at risk of being “cuckooed” into hosting drug 
dealing

 provide support for individuals who are vulnerable to radicalisation and 
extremism leading to terrorism through the Channel process; and support 
collaborative projects and events which build cohesion and offer a positive 
alternative narrative to extremism (Channel Panel is made up of multi-agency 
partners who collectively assess the risk to an individual and decide whether 
intervention is necessary)

 improve understanding and raise awareness on the use of techniques to 
combat cyber-crime, including risks to children and young people’s social and 
emotional wellbeing associated with the misuse of technology and risks 
associated with child exploitation.

 work with older communities to raise awareness of online fraud and how they 
can protect themselves from being a victim of both fraud and online scams. 

PRIORITY 3: Reducing knife crime and harm and 
vulnerability caused by drugs and alcohol 

Page 62



8

Serious violence has a negative impact on individuals, local communities and the 
whole of Oxfordshire.  It undermines how safe people feel and their wellbeing. 
Offences of violence with injury are estimated to have the highest cost impact of all 
crimes when considering all the costs to individuals and services.  
 
Why is it a Priority?

Increases in knife crime is a significant concern for the partnership.  Between 2018 
and 2019 there was an increase in the number of crimes related to the possession of 
a knife in Oxfordshire, just above the increase across the Thames Valley region.  
The 167 possession of knife crimes in Oxfordshire in 2019 involved 137 recorded 
offenders, 37 of whom were aged under 18 and 27 victims (3 were aged under 18).  
17 offences were recorded in both South Oxfordshire 143 per cent increase and Vale 
of White Horse 31 per cent increase.

Drug and alcohol misuse is often a factor in many offences, particularly crime 
relating to the night time economy, sexual violence, domestic violence, child abuse 
and anti-social behaviour.  People suffering from poor mental health are more likely 
to be targets of crime and ASB; and being the victim can cause poor mental health.  
In 2018/19, there were 40 adult hospital admissions for drug-related mental and 
behavioural disorders in Oxfordshire. The number of under 18s in specialist 
substance misuse services in Oxfordshire was 185.  This was up from 148 in 
2017/18 and 102 in 2016/17.  In 2019 (Jan-Dec), Thames Valley Police recorded a 
total of 2,221 alcohol-related crimes in Oxfordshire, just below number in 2018 
(2,248).

What we plan to do

We will:

 work with young people to raise awareness of knife crime to prevent young 
people from carrying knives

 provide support for young people by working with local young people’s 
services to deliver detached work, one to one mentoring and diversionary 
activities

 fund alternative activities for young people at risk of being drawn into serious 
organised crime, drug and alcohol use whilst supporting their mental well 
being

 work with communities to raise awareness of alcohol consumption and how to 
‘stay safe on a night out’

 identify areas/premises of concern, review data and agree necessary action 
through the Licensing and Responsible Local Authority Meetings

Page 63



9

CONTACT US

For more information, please contact a member of the South and Vale Community 
Safety Team:

Tel: 01235 422590 (textphone users add 18001 before you dial) 
Email: communitysafety@southandvale.gov.uk 
Websites: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk or www.southoxon.gov.uk
 

Page 64

mailto:communitysafety@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

 

Safer Oxfordshire Partnership 

Strategic Intelligence Assessment 2020 

FULL REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

April 2020 

 

  

Page 65



30 April 2020   Page | 2  

CONTENTS 
1. Introduction ....................................................................................................... 4 

2. Executive Summary.......................................................................................... 5 

3. Overview of Crime Trends .............................................................................. 10 

1.1. Trends in crime at national level .............................................................. 10 

3.1. Police recorded crime in Oxfordshire ....................................................... 11 

3.2. Trend in crime and severity of crime in Oxfordshire ................................. 12 

3.3. Change in crime by category ................................................................... 13 

4. Comparisons with Similar Areas ..................................................................... 15 

5. Indices of Deprivation 2019, crime domain ..................................................... 17 

6. Abuse and Exploitation ................................................................................... 21 

6.1. Oxfordshire summary ............................................................................... 21 

6.2. Repeat victimisation ................................................................................. 21 

6.3. Domestic abuse ....................................................................................... 23 

6.4. Domestic abuse involving children ........................................................... 27 

6.5. Rape offences and victims of rape ........................................................... 28 

6.6. Child sexual exploitation .......................................................................... 29 

6.7. Modern slavery ........................................................................................ 30 

6.8. Hate Crimes and Incidents ....................................................................... 31 

6.9. Child victims of crime ............................................................................... 33 

6.10. Older victims of Abuse .......................................................................... 35 

7. Offending and Re-offending ........................................................................... 36 

7.1. Children in custody .................................................................................. 36 

7.2. First-time entrants to the Youth Justice System ....................................... 36 

7.3. Juvenile re-offending ................................................................................ 37 

7.4. Adult re-offending ..................................................................................... 37 

8. Fraud and Cyber related offences .................................................................. 38 

8.1. Doorstep crime......................................................................................... 38 

8.2. Fraud ....................................................................................................... 39 

8.3. Cyber-related Offences ............................................................................ 40 

9. Mental Health – Detentions under Section 136 .............................................. 41 

10. Alcohol and Drugs ....................................................................................... 43 

10.1. Young people ....................................................................................... 43 

10.2. Adults.................................................................................................... 46 

10.3. Alcohol-related crime ............................................................................ 47 

11. Knife crime .................................................................................................. 47 

Page 66



30 April 2020   Page | 3  

12. Road casualties ........................................................................................... 49 

13. Rural crime .................................................................................................. 51 

Annex 1: Sources of Data ..................................................................................... 52 

Annex 2: Crime comparison and trend for districts ............................................... 54 

Cherwell ............................................................................................................. 59 

Oxford ................................................................................................................ 59 

South Oxfordshire .............................................................................................. 60 

Vale of White Horse ........................................................................................... 60 

West Oxfordshire ............................................................................................... 61 

 

 

 

Contributors to this report: 

• Mark Ellison, Policy Evaluation and Research Unit (PERU) at Manchester 
Metropolitan University: analysis of ONS and related data. 

• Thames Valley Police: data on victims of crime in Oxfordshire and assisting in 
reviewing findings. 

• Oxfordshire County Council: IMD analysis and community safety data, linking with 
the Oxfordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and summarising the findings. 

With thanks to the Safer Oxfordshire Partnership Coordination Group for their help and 
comments on drafts. 

  

Page 67

http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/joint-strategic-needs-assessment
https://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/community-and-living/our-work-communities/oxfordshire-partnership/safer-oxfordshire-partnership?utm_term=nil&utm_content=


30 April 2020   Page | 4  

1.  Introduction 
The Strategic Intelligence Assessment (SIA) provides information about crime and 
community safety in Oxfordshire and is part of the evidence base which supports 
community safety partners to plan and target their work. 

This 2020 SIA update uses the following sources of data: 

• Crime data published by the Office for National Statistics in January 2020 (for 
year ending September 2019) which allows for comparisons with national 
averages.  NOTE: this latest release excludes data for Greater Manchester 
Police because of issues with their data supply following implementation of a 
new IT system.  

• Rates of crime comparisons from HMICFRS. NOTE: there has been a delay 
to the release of crime comparisons and this report includes the latest data, 
from July 2018 to June 2019.  

• Locally sourced data on crimes, incidents and victims of crime from Thames 
Valley Police, January to December 2019. 

• Offending and reoffending data from LG Inform from Ministry of Justice data 
NOTE: data is no longer available at Local Authority level in the criminal 
justice system quarterly statistics series. 

• Public Health data on alcohol and drug use. 

• Doorstep Crime and Road traffic accident data from Oxfordshire County 
Council. 

• A list of data sources and links is provided in Annex 1 

The current and previous Strategic Intelligence Assessments for Oxfordshire are 
published here: http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/community-safety-0  

There are important overlaps between the SIA and Oxfordshire’s Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (JSNA), which contains information relevant to the health and 
wellbeing of the county’s population. The JSNA is available here: 
http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/joint-strategic-needs-assessment.  

 

New data in this update: 

• Indices of Deprivation 2019 (published September 2019) – crime domain 
(section 5) 

• Victims of abuse who have been repeat victims (section 6.2) 

• Child victims of crime (section 6.8) 

• Children in custody (section 7.1) 

 

  

Page 68

http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/community-safety-0
http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/joint-strategic-needs-assessment


30 April 2020   Page | 5  

2.  Executive Summary 

National crime trends 

• The national Crime Survey data (year ending September 2019) shows: 

o No significant change in overall levels of crime; 

o Continued rises in overall fraud, with a 9% increase in the year ending 
September 2019, driven by a rise in “bank and credit account fraud”.  

o All other main crime types measured by the CSEW showed no change, 
including lower-harm violent offences (for example, violence without injury 
and assault with minor injury). 

Oxfordshire crime trends and comparisons 

• Between (year ending September) 2018 and 2019, police recorded crime in 
Oxfordshire increased by 3.7%.  By district the change was Cherwell -5.2%; 
Oxford +5.2%; South Oxfordshire +7.2%; Vale of White Horse +2.9% and 
West Oxfordshire +15.8%. 

• The crime severity score has increased nationally.  In Oxfordshire the crime 
severity score remained similar in Cherwell, Oxford and South Oxfordshire 
and increased (from a lower base) in Vale of White Horse and West 
Oxfordshire (see charts).  

• Bicycle theft in Oxfordshire has remained above (worse than) the national 
average.  Shoplifting in Oxfordshire is now below average.  Other crime 
categories remain below average. 

• Between (year ending September) 2018 and 2019, there were increases in 
police recorded crimes of violence, stalking and harassment, sexual offences, 
vehicle offences, and other crimes against society including drugs, weapons 
and public order offences in Oxfordshire.  Some of these increases will be due 
to changes in recording of crimes. 

• For year ending June 2019, a comparison of Oxfordshire’s districts each 
within their most similar group of 15 areas (with 1 = highest crime rate area) 
shows: 

o Cherwell ranked 8th  

o Oxford ranked 7th  

o South Oxfordshire ranked 12th  

o Vale of White Horse ranked 15th  

o West Oxfordshire ranked 14th  

• Crime types that were above average (compared with similar areas) AND 
increasing (trend July-June 2018 to July-June 2019) were: Drugs offences 
and “Other crime”, each in Cherwell district.  See summary table 2. 

• According to the Crime domain of the IMD 2019, Oxfordshire had 6 areas (out 
of 407 in the county) ranked within the 10% most deprived nationally of which 
5 areas have become relatively more crime-deprived since the 2015 IMD. 

Page 69



30 April 2020   Page | 6  

Victims of abuse and exploitation 

• Between (Jan-Dec) 2018 and 2019  there were increases in the number of 
police recorded victims of abuse and exploitation in Oxfordshire for... 

o Domestic abuse victims - increased by 2% to 11,779; 

o Hate crime victims - increased by 6% to 934; 

o Modern slavery victims - increased by 17% to 168 (mainly as a 
result of changes in recording practice); 

o Honour-based violence – increased by 29% to 44 recorded victims. 

• The number of younger and older victims have each increased. 

o Child victims of crime (aged 0-17) – increased by 12% to 3,939; 

o Older victims of violence (aged 65+) - increased by 2% to 377. 

• Between 2018 and 2019, there were increases in racist crimes and 
occurrences, homophobic crimes and occurrences in Oxfordshire and 
transphobic occurrences.   

• Oxford City had the greatest number of hate crimes in each category and 
accounted for most of the increase in racist crimes and occurrences. 

• Over half of victims of domestic abuse in Oxfordshire in 2019 were subject to 
repeat occurrences in the year and over a quarter of victims of Rape, Modern 
Slavery, CSE and  Honour-based violence.   

Offending and re-offending 

• In 2019/20 there was a total of 3 young people in Oxfordshire given a 
custodial sentence, below each of the previous years (11 in 2018/19 and 9 in 
2017/18). 

• As of 2018/19, the rate (per population aged 10-17) of first-time entrants to the 
Youth Justice System in Oxfordshire was below previous years and slightly 
above the average for English County Local Authorities. 

• Between 2017/18 and 2018/19, the number of juvenile offenders and re-
offenders had each gone down in Oxfordshire, the re-offending rate per 
population has stayed similar.   

• In Cherwell and Vale of White Horse district, the juvenile re-offending rate 
was above the Oxfordshire average, however, similar to the England & 
Wales averages. 

• Note that, although the rate of juvenile offenders and re-offenders has 
declined, those who are in the Youth Justice System (YJS) are more 
complex than before.  

• The adult re-offending rate in Oxfordshire was below the previous year and 
similar to the national rate. Rates in Cherwell and Oxford City were each 
above the Oxfordshire and England & Wales averages. 

Page 70



30 April 2020   Page | 7  

Fraud and cyber-related crime 

• There has been a fall in the number of recorded victims of doorstep crime in 
Oxfordshire. 

• The number of fraud offences passed to Thames Valley Police by Action 
Fraud has increased significantly in Oxfordshire, just below the increase 
across Thames Valley. 

• The number of cyber-related offences has fallen - the previous year’s count 
was inflated by the activities of a single person in South Oxfordshire. 

Mental health, alcohol and drugs 

• Between 2018 and 2019, there was significant increase in mental health 
(section 136) detentions in Oxfordshire. 

• According to the 2018 Health survey for England, alcohol consumption by 
children (nationally) has continued to decline. 

• The rate of hospital admissions for alcohol-specific conditions in females 
under 18 in Oxfordshire has remained above the England average.  The rate 
for males in Oxfordshire has remained similar to average. 

• Drug arrests of under 18s has declined.   

• Compared with England, in 2018/19 hospital admissions for alcohol-related 
conditions (all people, all ages) were better than average in Oxfordshire and 
each of Oxfordshire’s districts.  

• The rate of drugs-related deaths (2016 to 2018) in Oxfordshire remains 
significantly lower than England and the South East. 

• The number of police-recorded crimes related to alcohol in Oxfordshire has 
remained at a similar level in 2019, following a doubling of the number in the 
previous year.  The rate per population in 2019 was highest in Oxford City. 

Knife crime 

• Between 2018 and 2019 there was an increase in the number of crimes 
related to the possession of a knife in Oxfordshire, just above the increase 
across the Thames Valley region. 

• The 167 possession of knife crimes in Oxfordshire in 2019 involved 137 
recorded offenders, 37 of whom were aged under 18 and 27 victims (3 were 
aged under 18). 

• In 2019 there were 335 violent, sexual and robbery offences recorded in 
Oxfordshire where a sharp or bladed implement was linked to the offence as a 
weapon. This was 7% above the number in 2018 (312).  The increase across 
Thames Valley was +6%. 

Page 71



30 April 2020   Page | 8  

Road casualties 

• Between 2018 and 2019, the total number of police-reported road traffic 
casualties in Oxfordshire declined by 8.5%.  The number of child casualties 
also declined (from 115 in 2018 to 98 in 2019). 

• The age group with the highest number of road accident causalities in 
Oxfordshire in 2019 for both males and females was aged 25-34. 

• In the last five-year period 2015 to 2019 there was 237 road traffic accidents 
in Oxfordshire where at least one driver either failed an alcohol breath test or 
refused to provide a sample when requested. 

• This latest data puts Oxfordshire above the national average on the crude rate 
of alcohol-related road traffic accidents (per 1,000 accidents), although both 
follow a similar trend pattern up to 2018 (latest available national data) and 
compare similarly to Oxfordshire’s statistical neighbours. 

Rural crime 

• Oxfordshire is the most rural county in the South East.  

• Between 2018 and 2019 there was a decline in the number of rural crimes 
(offences meeting the rural definition) in Oxfordshire from 169 in 2018 to 127 
in 2019 (-25%).   

 
  

Page 72



30 April 2020   Page | 9  

In numbers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS  *Oxfordshire County Council 
2018-19; #Oxfordshire County Council 

Robbery, 309 

Total 43,469 
By major crime type 

Recorded victims Selected offences and arrests 

All recorded crime in Oxfordshire 

Jan to Dec 2019 

Oct 2018 to Sept 2019 

Page 73



30 April 2020   Page | 10  

3. Overview of Crime Trends 

1.1. Trends in crime at national level 

There are two main sources of national crime data: 

1. The Crime Survey for England and Wales (CSEW).  This is a sample survey 
providing data at national and regional levels.1  Data from this survey is not 
available at a county or local authority district level.  

2. Police recorded crime2 data which is considered to be “considerably affected” 
by changes in recording policy and practice.   

NOTE: The latest release of Police recorded crime data excludes data for 
Greater Manchester Police because of issues with their data supply 
following implementation of a new IT system.3 

The national Crime Survey data2 (year ending September 2019) shows: 

• No significant change in overall levels of crime; 

• Continued rises in overall fraud, with a 9% increase in the year ending 
September 2019, driven by a rise in “bank and credit account fraud”.  

• All other main crime types measured by the CSEW showed no change, 
including lower-harm violent offences (for example, violence without injury and 
assault with minor injury). 

Police recorded crime data give more insight into the lower-volume but higher-harm 
violence that the Crime Survey either does not cover or does not capture well.  

For the year ending September 2019 in England and Wales (excluding Greater 
Manchester Police) Police crime data shows: 

• a 6% decrease in the overall number of homicides following a period of 
increases, 

• no percentage change in the number of police recorded offences involving 
firearms, 

• a 7% increase in the number of offences involving knives or sharp 
instruments. 

  

                                            

1 http://www.crimesurvey.co.uk/ 

2 Crime in England and Wales: year ending September 2019 (released January 2020) 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales
/yearendingseptember2019  

3 In order to allow for accurate comparisons across the years, data for GMP have been excluded from all the 
police recorded crime data and tables presented in [the ONS] bulletin for the years ending September 2019, 
March 2019, September 2018 and March 2018. 

Page 74

http://www.crimesurvey.co.uk/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/yearendingseptember2019
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/crimeinenglandandwales/yearendingseptember2019


30 April 2020   Page | 11  

3.1. Police recorded crime in Oxfordshire 

Between year ending September 2018 and year ending September 2019, police 
recorded crime in Oxfordshire increased from 41,934 to 43,469, a rise of 1,535 
(3.7%). 

Note that some of this increase is likely to be due to changes in recording policy and 
practice. 

By district the change between 2018 and 2019 was Cherwell -5.1%; Oxford +5.2%; 
South Oxfordshire +7.2%; Vale of White Horse +2.9% and West Oxfordshire 
+15.8%. 

 

Figure 1  Number of police recorded crime offences by local authority (to year ending 
September) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2019 to 2020 

                           -542                   +823                +453                  +148                +653      

Source:  ONS Crime in England and Wales: year ending September 2019; Recorded crime data by 
Community Safety Partnership area 

 

  

Page 75

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/datasets/recordedcrimedatabycommunitysafetypartnershiparea
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/datasets/recordedcrimedatabycommunitysafetypartnershiparea


30 April 2020   Page | 12  

3.2. Trend in crime and severity of crime in Oxfordshire 

The crime severity score uses (latest 5 years of) sentencing data – custodial sentences, community 
orders and fines - from the Ministry of Justice as the primary source for calculating offence 
weights.  Once the weights have been calculated for each individual offence, these are multiplied 
by the number of incidents recorded by the police. For each year this is then summed and divided 
by the mid-year population estimate, to give the Crime Severity Score. 

Applying the crime severity score upweights violence against the person, sexual offences and 
robbery and downweights theft, criminal damage & arson and other crimes against society. 

 
The crime severity score has increased nationally.  In Oxfordshire the crime severity 
score remained similar in Cherwell, Oxford and South Oxfordshire and increased 
(from a lower base) in Vale of White Horse and West Oxfordshire.  

 

Figure 2  Trend in crime rates per 1,000 population and crime severity score - 
Oxfordshire’s districts (to year ending March) 

  

  

  

Source: ONS ((released October 2019, next release April 2020); The Crime Severity Score published 
by ONS gives more severe offence categories a higher weight than less severe ones. [Please note 
different axes] 

 

Page 76

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/researchoutputsdevelopingacrimeseverityscoreforenglandandwalesusingdataoncrimesrecordedbythepolice/2016-11-29
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/datasets/crimeseverityscoreexperimentalstatistics


30 April 2020   Page | 13  

3.3. Change in crime by category 

For year ending September 2019, the crime rate per 1,000 population in Oxfordshire 
has remained below (better than) the national average.  All of the main police 
recorded crime types are below average in Oxfordshire, with the exception of bicycle 
theft which has remained above (worse than) average.   

Shoplifting was above average last year and is now below average. 

 

Table 1  Police recorded crime for Oxfordshire for the 12 months to September 2019 
(including annual change for the 12 months to September 2018 and rates per 1,000 
population, with England & Wales comparison) * 

  Change 2018 to 2019 
Rates per 1000 

population 

Offence Type Crimes Number Percentage Oxfordshire 
England 
& Wales# 

VICTIM BASED CRIME 38,669 +644 +1.4% 56.2 76.0 

Violence against the person offences 12,551 +1,817 +16.9% 18.3 29.0 

Homicide 5 +1 +25.0% <0.1 <0.1 

Death or serious injury caused by   

illegal driving 
12 +1 +9.1% <0.1 <0.1 

Violence with injury 4,018 +58 +1.5% 5.8 9.1 

Violence  without injury 5,693 +746 +15.1% 8.3 11.8 

Stalking and harassment 2,823 +1,011 +55.8% 4.1 8.0 

Sexual Offences 1,596 +41 +2.6% 2.3 2.7 

Robbery 309 -16 -4.9% 0.4 1.5 

Theft offences 19,478 -937 -4.6% 28.3 33.4 

Burglary 2,976 -302 -9.2% 4.3 6.8 

Residential burglary** 2,088 -140 -6.3% 7.7 11.4 

Non-residential burglary 888 -162 -15.4% 1.3 2.0 

Vehicle offences 3,552 +368 +11.6% 5.2 7.8 

Theft from the person 1,041 -46 -4.2% 1.5 1.9 

Bicycle theft 2,563 71 +2.8% 3.7 1.6 

Shoplifting 3,836 -707 -15.6% 5.6 6.2 

All other theft offences 5,510 -321 -5.5% 8.0 9.1 

Criminal damage and arson 4,735 -261 -5.2% 6.9 9.4 

OTHER CRIMES AGAINST SOCIETY 4,800 +891 +30.2% 7.0 12.8 

Drug offences 1,464 +104 +23.0% 2.1 2.9 

Possession of weapons offences 351 +75 +7.7% 0.5 0.8 

Public order offences 2,062 +537 +36.2% 3.0 7.4 

Miscellaneous crimes against society 923 +175 +42.8% 1.3 1.7 

TOTAL RECORDED CRIME* 43,469 +1,535 3.7% 63.2 88.8 

Source: ONS Police Recorded Crime Statistics (January 2020 data release); *Total Crime excluding 

Fraud. See the section on Fraud below for a report on fraud offences. ** Residential burglary as rate 

per 1000 households;  # England and Wales rate per 1,000 population excludes GMP data 

 

 

Page 77



30 April 2020   Page | 14  

Between (the 12 months to) September 2018 and (the 12 months to) September 
2019, there were increases in police recorded crimes of violence, stalking and 
harassment, sexual offences, vehicle offences, and other crimes against society 
including drugs, weapons and public order offences4 in Oxfordshire. 

Some of these increases will be due to changes in recording of crimes.  

Charts for districts are provided in Annex 2 

 

Figure 3  Change in overall police recorded crime and individual crime categories and 
groups for Oxfordshire between (the 12 months to) September 2018 and (the 12 
months to) September 2019 

 

Source: ONS Police Recorded Crime Statistics (January 2020 data release) 

NOTES: The Homicide and Death or injury - unlawful driving percentage changes are presented in 

the graph, however please note that the numbers are small (5 in 2019 compared with 4 in 2018, 

+25% and 12 and 11 respectively). 

 

                                            

4 According to ONS, increases in public order offences are “likely to reflect improvements and changes to 
recording practices. For example, incidents that may have previously been recorded as an anti-social behaviour 
incident may now be recorded as a public order offence. However, it is possible that genuine increases in 
public disorder may have contributed to this rise”. 

Page 78



30 April 2020   Page | 15  

4. Comparisons with Similar Areas 
The following charts show how Oxfordshire’s districts perform in comparison with 
their group of ‘most similar areas’).   

The highest ranked district on overall rate of crime was Oxford (7th out of 15). 

Figure 5 Rates of all crime per 1,000 population, for Oxfordshire districts for the 12 
months to June 2019, with statistical neighbour comparisons  

Cherwell Oxford 

 
 

South Oxfordshire Vale of White Horse 

 
 

West Oxfordshire  

 

 

 

 

 

Source: HMICFRS (September 2019 data 
release) 

Statistical neighbour comparisons are not 
available at county level 

 

[7th] 

[12th] 

[15th] 

[14th] 

[8th] 

Page 79



30 April 2020   Page | 16  

The following table summarises the police recorded crime rate comparison and trend 
for all districts.  For individual district tables see Annex 2. 

Crime types that were above average (compared with similar areas) AND increasing 
(trend between 12 months to June 2018 and June 2019) were: 

• Drugs offences and “Other crime” in Cherwell 

 

Table 2  Oxfordshire districts - recorded crime rate comparison (12 months to June 
2019) and trend 12 months to June 2018 and June 2019 

 
Cherwell Oxford South 

Oxfordshire 
Vale of 

White Horse 
West 

Oxfordshire 

All crime Average Average Below  Below  Below 

Bicycle theft Average  Above AverageAverageAverage
Burglary Below Average Below  Below  Below 

Criminal damage & arson Average AverageAverage Below  Below 

Drugs Above Average Below AverageAverage
Other crime Above Average Below  Below  Below 

Other theft Above  Above Average Below  Below 

Possession of weapons Average Average Below  Below  Below 

Public order Below  Below  Below  Below  Below 

Robbery Average Average Below  Below  Below 

Shoplifting Above AverageAverage Below  Below 

Theft from the person Above  Above AverageAverage Above 

Vehicle crime Average AverageAverage Below  Below 

Violence & sexual  Average Average Below  Below  Below 

Source: HMICFRS (September 2019 data release), rate calculated using ONS 2018 mid-year population 
estimate. NOTE: crime rate comparison is for 12 months to June 2019, trend is for 12 months to June 18 and 12 
months to June 2019. 

 

For the comparison with most similar local authorities:5 

• “Above” means that the crime rate was within the highest 25% for the corresponding “similar 
areas group”  

• “Average” means that the crime rate was within the middle 50% for the corresponding “similar 
areas group” 

• “Below” means that the crime rate was within the lowest 25% for the corresponding “similar areas 
group” 

For each district authority the change in crime rate: 

• “” means that for the 12 months ending 30th June 2019, the crime rate was up compared with 
the 12 months ending 30th June 2018. 

• “▬” means that in 12 months ending 30th June 2019, the crime rate was the same (to one decimal 
place) compared with the 12 months ending 30th June 2018 

• “” means that in the 12 months ending 30th June 2019, the crime rate was down compared with 
the 12 months ending 30th June 2018 

                                            

5 A detailed methodology and statistical differences are explained in the compare your area user guide: 
http://policeuk.s3.amazonaws.com/iquanta/Compare_Your_Area-_User_Guide.pdf 

Page 80

http://policeuk.s3.amazonaws.com/iquanta/Compare_Your_Area-_User_Guide.pdf


30 April 2020   Page | 17  

5. Indices of Deprivation 2019, crime domain 
According to the most recent release of the Indices of Deprivation, Oxfordshire has 6 
areas (out of 407) ranked in the most deprived 10% nationally on the crime domain 
and a further 9 areas within the most deprived 10% to 20%. 

The 10% most deprived areas on crime include two areas of Banbury Ruscote, part 
of Bicester South and three areas in Oxford City (part of Jericho and Osney ward, 
part of St Clements and part of Northfield Brook). 

 

Figure 4  Indices of Deprivation 2019 Crime Domain – Oxfordshire and Oxford City 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Source: DCLG IMD 2019, maps from Oxfordshire Insight Tableau dashboard  

Crime domain 

Least deprived  

Mapping by Lower Layer Super Output Area.  
There are 407 LSOAs in Oxfordshire with an 
average of 1,600 residents. 

The Crime domain includes rate of: violence, 
burglary, theft, criminal damage. Data for 
2016/17 and 2017/18 

Most deprived 

Least deprived  

6 

9 
22 

16 

31 

32 
30 

59 

75 
127 

Crime domain 

Count of LSOAs 

Most deprived 3 

4 
16 

8 

17 

5 
6 

13 

4 
7 

Count of LSOAs 

Total of 83 LSOAs in Oxford City 

Page 81

https://public.tableau.com/views/IMD2019Oxfordshire/IMD2019?:embed=y&:display_count=no&:showVizHome=no#1
https://public.tableau.com/views/IMD2019Oxfordshire/IMD2019?:embed=y&:display_count=no&:showVizHome=no#1


30 April 2020   Page | 18  

Figure 5  Indices of Deprivation 2019 Crime Domain – urban centres in Oxfordshire 

Banbury 

 

 

 

 

Bicester  

 

 

Kidlington 

 

 

 

 

Carterton 

Chipping Norton 

 

 

 

 

Witney 

 

 

Didcot 

 

 

 

 

Wallingford 

Abingdon 

 

 

 

 

Wantage  
and Grove 

Source: MHCLG IMD 2019, maps from Oxfordshire Insight Tableau dashboard  

Most deprived 

Least deprived 

Page 82

https://public.tableau.com/views/IMD2019Oxfordshire/IMD2019?:embed=y&:display_count=no&:showVizHome=no#1
https://public.tableau.com/views/IMD2019Oxfordshire/IMD2019?:embed=y&:display_count=no&:showVizHome=no#1


30 April 2020   Page | 19  

Of the six Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in Oxfordshire ranked in the 10% 
most deprived in Oxfordshire on the crime domain of the 2019 IMD, one had been in 
this most deprived decile in 2015 and five areas were newly added. 

• The area still ranked in the most deprived decile in 2019  was part of Jericho 
and Osney (Oxford 009D).  The national rank of this area has improved but 
not enough to move it out of the top 10%; 

• The additional 5 areas joining the top 10% most deprived in 2019 were parts 
of Banbury, Bicester and Oxford (part of St Clement’s and Northfield Brook). 

Seven areas dropped out of the top 10%, i.e. become LESS crime-deprived in 2019 
(parts of Oxford and one area of Banbury Cross & Neithrop). 

The following chart shows only those areas of Oxfordshire that were included in the 
most deprived 10% in England on the crime domain of the Indices of Deprivation in 
2015 or in 2019.  It plots the rank of each area (out of 32,844 in England) and is 
labelled with the decile where 1= most deprived 10%). 

 

Figure 6  Change in Crime Domain for Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in 
Oxfordshire ranked in the most deprived 10% in 2015 or in 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: MHCLG IMD 2019 

most 
deprived 

least 
deprived 

Area now ranked LESS deprived 
Area now ranked MORE deprived 
Number in circle is decile where 1=in top 
10% most deprived 

Areas labelled with ward name 
and LSOA name (last 3 digits) in 
order of IMD 2019 rank 

Page 83



30 April 2020   Page | 20  

The part of Jericho and Osney that is ranked in most deprived on the crime domain 
of the 2019 IMD is shown below.  This includes the area surrounding Oxford railway 
station. 

Figure 7  Lower super output area Oxford 009D, highest ranked on crime domain in 
Oxfordshire 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mapping by Oxfordshire County Council 

 

It is not clear why this area is ranked the highest on crime in Oxfordshire.  It may be 
that the number of crimes (violence, burglary, theft, criminal damage) in this area 
was high relative to the “at risk” population (population and workers in the area OR 
residential dwellings and non-domestic properties).  Further work is needed to 
investigate this. 

 

From IMD 2019 technical report 

For the violence, theft and criminal damage indicators, the constrained Lower-layer Super Output 
Area counts for 2016/17 and 2017/18 were summed and divided by two in order to produce average 
annual crime counts over the two-year period. The resultant crime counts were then expressed as 
crime rates per 1,000 ‘at-risk’ population, using a special population-based denominator. This 
denominator was constructed by calculating the ‘at-risk’ population in mid-2016 and the ‘at-risk’ 
population in mid-2017 and then taking the average of the two. For each of the two years, the ‘at-
risk’ population consisted of the total Lower-layer Super Output Area mid-year population estimate 
for that year (minus the prison population) plus the non-resident workplace population from the 
2011 Census. 

For the burglary indicator, counts for Lower-layer Super Output Areas for 2016/17 and 2017/18 were 
summed and divided by two in order to produce average annual crime counts over the two-year 
period. The resultant crime counts were then expressed as a crime rate per 1,000 ‘at-risk’ properties, 
using a special property-based denominator. This denominator consisted of residential dwellings at 
Lower-layer Super Output Area level from the 2011 Census plus non-domestic properties at the same 
level from the March 2018 version of Ordnance Survey’s Address Base. 

Page 84

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019-technical-report


30 April 2020   Page | 21  

 

6. Abuse and Exploitation 

6.1. Oxfordshire summary 

This section provides data on the number of recorded crimes, incidents and victims 
of abuse and exploitation. 

The following table is a summary of the number of police recorded victims of different 
forms of abuse and exploitation recorded by Thames Valley Police in Oxfordshire in 
2017, 2018 and 2019 (Jan-Dec). 

 

Table 3 Police recorded victims of abuse and exploitation in Oxfordshire, 2017 to 2019 

Recorded victims of… 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019 

Domestic Abuse 11,446 11,586 11,779 193 2% 

Hate crime 862 882 934 52 6% 

Rape 611 699 698 -1 0% 

Modern slavery 106 144 168 24 17% 

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) 106 138 78 -60 -43% 

Honour-based violence 69 34 44 10 29% 

Female Genital Mutilation 5 5 2 -3 -60% 

Child victims of crime 3,086 3,526 3,939 413 +12% 

Older victims of violence (aged 65+) 239 371 377 6 2% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020). NB: these 
counts are for number of unique victims in the year.  Some victims will have been a victim more than 
once. 
 
 
 

6.2. Repeat victimisation 

Just over half of victims of domestic abuse were subject to repeat occurrences in 
Oxfordshire in 2019 and over a quarter of victims of Rape, Modern Slavery, CSE and  
Honour-based violence. 

• 54% of victims of DA in Oxfordshire were recorded at least twice in 2019 and 
35% were a victim of an occurrence on three or more occasions. 

 

Page 85



30 April 2020   Page | 22  

Table 4  Proportion of victims by number of times recorded as a victim in 2019 

Number of times 
Domestic 

Abuse 
Hate 
crime Rape 

Older 
victims 

Modern 
slavery CSE 

Honour-
based 

Once 46% 83% 74% 84% 61% 65% 61% 

Twice 19% 13% 15% 9% 30% 13% 23% 

Three  11% 3% 3% 4% 9% 8% 7% 

Four  7% 1% 2% 1% 0% 0% 9% 

Five 4% 1% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

More than five 13% 0% 4% 2% 0% 14% 0% 

TOTAL (count) 11,779 934 698 418 168 78 44 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020). 

  

Page 86



30 April 2020   Page | 23  

6.3. Domestic abuse 

The cross-government definition of domestic violence and abuse is any incident or pattern of 
incidents of controlling, coercive, threatening behaviour, violence or abuse between those aged 
16 or over who are, or have been, intimate partners or family members, regardless of gender or 
sexuality. The abuse can encompass (but is not limited to): psychological; physical; sexual; 
financial; emotional. 

This definition (which is not a legal definition) includes so called 'honour’ based violence, female 
genital mutilation (FGM) and forced marriage.  Victims are not confined to one gender or ethnic 
group. 

 

Changes in the recording of domestic abuse crimes and incidents may have 
contributed to an increase in the number of DA crimes and a decrease in the number 
of DA incidents in Oxfordshire. 

For calendar year 2019, there were 5,976 DA crimes and 6,374 DA incidents in 
Oxfordshire.  The rate of DA crimes and the rate of DA incidents per population were 
each highest in Cherwell and Oxford City. 

 

Table 5  Domestic Abuse Crimes 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 rate 
per 1,000 
pop aged 

16+ 

2018 to 2019 

Cherwell 775 889 1,363 1,603 13.4 240 18% 

Oxford 1,006 1,008 1,603 1,572 12.4 -31 -2% 

South Oxfordshire 501 539 950 1,033 9.1 83 9% 

Vale of White Horse 516 517 907 941 8.7 34 4% 

West Oxfordshire 353 399 769 827 9.2 58 8% 

Oxfordshire TOTAL 3,151 3,352 5,592 5,976 10.7 384 7% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020).  ONS 
mid-year population estimate 2017, aged 16+ 

NOTE  The increase in the DA crimes recorded is following the HMIC inspection, which lead to 
various changes in recording practises. The Force Crime Registrars and now the supervisors in the 
control rooms carry out daily audits. The audit looks at crimes that have not had a DA flag attached to 
them but the Offence Enquiry Log includes words that indicate a domestic incident may have 
occurred. Another factor to the increase is the removal of the classification - Domestic Incident - Non 
Crime. All DA crimes now go on as a DA crimes, once assessed if it is deemed to be a none crime it 
will be made non valid. 

While the number of incidents are decreasing the number of crimes has increased because of the 
auditing and crime recording changes. 

 

Page 87



30 April 2020   Page | 24  

Table 6  Domestic Abuse Incidents (non-Crime occurrences) 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 rate 
per 1,000 
pop aged 

16+ 

2018 to 2019 

Cherwell 2,254 2,220 1,639 1,619 13.6 -20 -1% 

Oxford 2,431 2,311 1,661 1,698 13.4 37 2% 

South Oxfordshire 1,329 1,480 1,086 1,127 9.9 41 4% 

Vale of White Horse 1,443 1,333 1,013 1,053 9.8 40 4% 

West Oxfordshire 1,147 1,222 979 877 9.8 -102 -10% 

Oxfordshire TOTAL 8,604 8,566 6,378 6,374 11.4 -4 0% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020); Non-
crime occurrences are incidents which have come to the attention of the police, and would normally 
amount to a notifiable crime, but a resultant crime has not been recorded. Specific circumstances in 
which this would happen are: the occurrence is reported by a third party and the alleged victim either 
declines to confirm the crime or cannot be traced OR the occurrence is being dealt with by another 
police force OR the National Crime Recording Standard or Home Office Counting Rules for Recording 
Crime direct that a crime should not be recorded. 

 

Domestic abuse victims and perpetrators 

In Oxfordshire in 2019, Thames Valley Police recorded a total of 11,779 victims of 
domestic abuse crimes and incidents (+2% compared with 2018).  Districts with the 
greatest increases were South Oxfordshire (+6%) and Cherwell (+5%). 

The district with the greatest rate of recorded DA victims per 1,000 population was 
Cherwell. 

 

Table 7  Number of police recorded victims of Domestic Abuse (Crime and Incidents) 
in Oxfordshire 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 rate per 
1,000 pop 
aged 16+ 

2018 to 2019 

Cherwell 2,878 2,999 2,910 3,061 25.6 151 5% 

Oxford 3,278 3,174 3,170 3,095 24.4 -75 -2% 

South Oxfordshire 1,742 1,934 1,963 2,085 18.4 122 6% 

Vale of White Horse 1,880 1,777 1,860 1,923 17.8 63 3% 

West Oxfordshire 1,416 1,562 1,683 1,615 18.1 -68 -4% 

Oxfordshire TOTAL 11,194 11,446 11,586 11,779 21.1 193 2% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020) 

 

Just over half of victims of domestic abuse were subject to repeat occurrences in 
Oxfordshire in 2019 and over 1 in 10 were victims more than 5 times in the year.  

Page 88



30 April 2020   Page | 25  

Cherwell and Oxford each have a higher proportion of victims who were victims more 
than once and victims more than 5 times.    

 

Figure 8  Repeat victims of domestic abuse: % victims by number of times recorded 
as a victim in 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System: Niche 

 

By age, the greatest increases in recorded victims of domestic abuse in Oxfordshire 
were in the younger (under 18) and the 50-64 year age groups.   

The age group with the highest rate per population was 25-49.  

 

Table 8  Police recorded victims of Domestic Abuse (Crime and Incidents) in 
Oxfordshire, by age 

Age band 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 rate 
per 1,000 

pop 

2018 to 
2019 

% 
change 

0-15 114 95 141 176 1.4 35 25% 

16-17 377 297 326 347 23.7 21 6% 

18-24 2,087 2,217 2,204 2,073 30.7 -131 -6% 

25-49 6,697 6,825 6,862 6,981 31.5 119 2% 

50-64 1,417 1,534 1,445 1,606 12.5 161 11% 

65-79 364 358 393 390 4.3 -3 -1% 

80+ 110 90 134 116 3.3 -18 -13% 

Age not recorded 28 30 81 90    

Total  11,194 11,446 11,586 11,779 17.1 193 2% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020); total 
excludes age not recorded 

44% 44% 47% 50% 45% 46%

19% 20% 18% 17% 22% 19%

10% 11% 12% 11% 13% 11%
8% 7% 7% 6% 6% 7%
5% 4% 3% 5% 4% 4%

14% 15% 13% 10% 10% 13%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Cherwell Oxford South
Oxfordshire

Vale of White
Horse

West
Oxfordshire

Oxfordshire

More than 5

Five

Four

Three

Twice

Once

Page 89



30 April 2020   Page | 26  

Domestic abuse victims by gender 

• Overall in Oxfordshire in 2019, of the recorded victims with a recorded gender 
(the majority): 76% of victims were female and 24% were male.  Between 
2018 and 2019 the number of male victims declined. 

Domestic abuse victims by ethnicity 

• Over half, (55%) of domestic victims in Oxfordshire 2019 had no recorded 
ethnicity. 

• Of those with ethnicity recorded.. 
o 89% of victims in Oxfordshire were White ethnic background and 11% 

were non-White (Asian 4%;  Mixed 3%;  Black 2%; Other 1%) 
o In Oxford, as expected from the more ethnically diverse population, 

78% of victims were White and 22% were non-White (Asian 11%;  
Mixed 2%;  Black 4%, Other 4%). 

Perpetrators of Domestic abuse by gender 

In 2019, Thames Valley Police recorded a total of 11,298 perpetrators (suspect and 
offenders) of domestic abuse in Oxfordshire.   

Just over three quarters of perpetrators of Domestic abuse were male (77%) and just 
below a quarter were female (23%).   

Honour based violence 

The number of police recorded victims of Honour-based violence in Oxfordshire has 
increased from 34 recorded by Thames Valley Police in 2018 to 44 in 2019, of which 
more than half (26) were in Cherwell5.   

The majority of recorded victims in the 3-year period 2017-2019 were residents of 
Oxford City (54%).  31% were resident in Cherwell and 5% in each of South 
Oxfordshire, Vale of White Horse and West Oxfordshire. 

Female genital mutilation (FGM) 

In Oxfordshire in 2019, Thames Valley Police recorded a total of 2 victims of Female 
Genital Mutilation (crime and non-crime)6, down from 5 in 2018. 

  

                                            

6 Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020) 

Page 90



30 April 2020   Page | 27  

6.4. Domestic abuse involving children 

There has been a significant increase in the number of police recorded domestic 
abuse crimes in Oxfordshire involving children (as aggrieved, suspect, offender or 
witness). 

This may be a result of a genuine increase, or changes in recording practice or both. 

The district with the highest rate per population in 2018/19 was Cherwell 

 

Figure 9  Number of police recorded domestic abuse incidents and crimes involving 
children, Oxfordshire per quarter 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS; all DA incidents where the 
person role matches the word ‘Child’ or the person age at time of offence is between 0-17.  This will 
include any child linked to the offence in anyway (aggrieved, suspect, offender or witness). 

 

 

 

  

Page 91



30 April 2020   Page | 28  

6.5. Rape offences and victims of rape 

Between 2018 and 2019, the number of recorded rape offences increased by 14.0% 
in Oxfordshire, above the increase across the Thames Valley (+12.3%). This 
followed a 9.7% increase in 2018, a 3.8% increase in 2017 and a 17.8% increase in 
2016. 

 

Table 9  Rape offences 2016 to 2019 
 

For period to January-December 2018-19 change 

  

  

2017 2018 2019 (n) %   

Cherwell 108  121  154  +33 +27.3%  

Oxford 173  204  216  +12 +5.9%  

South Oxfordshire   87    73    99  +26 +35.6%  

Vale of White Horse   66    88    84  -4 -4.5%  

West Oxfordshire   56    55    64  +9 +16.4%  

Oxfordshire 490  541  617   +76  +14.0%  

Thames Valley 1,724   1,844  2,071  +227 +12.3%  

Source: Thames Valley Police: Summary of Notifiable Offences (2019) 

 

The total number of recorded victims of rape offences in Oxfordshire remained 
similar at 698 in 2019 (699 in 2018). 

The greatest number of recorded rape victims was in Oxford (36% of the total for 
Oxfordshire) and the greatest increase in victims between 2018 and 2019 was in 
Cherwell (+25%, 36 additional victims) and South Oxfordshire (+23%, 20 additional 
victims). 

 

Table 10  Number of police recorded victims of Rape (Crime and Crime Related 
Occurrence) in Oxfordshire, calendar year 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 % 
of total 

2018 to 2019 

Cherwell 128 136 144 180 26% 36 25% 

Oxford 228 222 293 248 36% -45 -15% 

South Oxfordshire 70 98 88 108 15% 20 23% 

Vale of White Horse 69 82 102 92 13% -10 -10% 

West Oxfordshire 53 73 72 70 10% -2 -3% 

Oxfordshire TOTAL 548 611 699 698 100% -1 0% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020); The 
above data is for all victims of rape offences 

 

Page 92



30 April 2020   Page | 29  

6.6. Child sexual exploitation 

In February 2017, the government published Child sexual exploitation: definition and 
guide for practitioners7 setting out a definition of child sexual exploitation, potential 
vulnerabilities and indicators of abuse and appropriate action to take in response. 

The definition of Child Sexual Exploitation from this guidance is:  

Child sexual exploitation is a form of child sexual abuse. It occurs where an 
individual or group takes advantage of an imbalance of power to coerce, 
manipulate or deceive a child or young person under the age of 18 into sexual 
activity (a) in exchange for something the victim needs or wants, and/or (b) for 
the financial advantage or increased status of the perpetrator or facilitator. 
The victim may have been sexually exploited even if the sexual activity 
appears consensual. Child sexual exploitation does not always involve 
physical contact; it can also occur through the use of technology.  

In 2019, Thames Valley Police recorded a total of 78 victims of Child Sexual 
Exploitation in Oxfordshire, well below that in 2018 (138) with the greatest decrease 
in Oxford (12 in 2019 down from 78 in 2018).   

45% of victims recorded in the five years between 2015 and 2019 were in Oxford 
City and a further 25% were in Cherwell. 

 

Table 11  Number of police recorded victims of Child Sexual Exploitation (Crime and 
Crime Related Occurrence) in Oxfordshire, calendar year 

 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total 
2015-19 

% of 
total 

Cherwell 29 41 36 31 29 166 25% 

Oxford 92 94 21 78 12 297 45% 

South Oxfordshire 15 16 24 7 19 81 12% 

Vale of White Horse 16 10 16 18 10 70 11% 

West Oxfordshire 11 9 9 4 8 41 6% 

Oxfordshire TOTAL 163 170 106 138 78 655 100% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020); The 
above CSE data is for all victims of offences where either the 'Child Sexual Exploitation' qualifier has 
been used or the Occurrence Type has been recorded as 'Suspected CSE – Crime Related Incident' 

 

                                            

7 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/child-sexual-exploitation-definition-and-guide-for-
practitioners  

Page 93

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/child-sexual-exploitation-definition-and-guide-for-practitioners
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/child-sexual-exploitation-definition-and-guide-for-practitioners


30 April 2020   Page | 30  

6.7. Modern slavery 

From 1 November 2015, as set out in the Modern Slavery Act 2015, specified public 
authorities (including all police forces and local authorities), have a duty to notify the 
Home Office of any individual encountered in England and Wales who they believe is 
a suspected victim of slavery or human trafficking. 

In 2019, Thames Valley Police recorded 168 victims of Modern Slavery in 
Oxfordshire, above the number recorded in 2018 (144). 

This increase is mainly a result of recording practice following the change of 
guidance.   Police forces are now required to classify every National Referral 
Mechanism (NRM) submission8 that they receive as a crime, both from their own 
officers and external agencies.  

There has been also been an increase due to the increase in NRM referrals 
generally.  

 

 

Table 12  Number of police recorded victims of Modern Slavery and Trafficking 
Offences in Oxfordshire 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019 

Cherwell* 12 30 51 39 -12 

Oxford 20 50 52 78 26 

South Oxfordshire 1 6 13 22 9 

Vale of White Horse 2 15 24 14 -10 

West Oxfordshire 2 5 4 15 11 

Oxfordshire TOTAL 37 106 144 168 24 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020). The 
above data is for all victims of Modern Slavery and Trafficking offences. Modern Slavery offences 
have been identified where either the HO Category Number is 106 or the Modern Slavery Finalisation 
Qualifier has been used. Trafficking offences have been identified where either the classification or 
Occurrence Type has been recorded as Trafficking for Sexual exploitation (out of, into, within the UK) 
and Trafficking for non-sexual Exploitation (out of, into, within the UK) 

*Note that a significant number of the Cherwell Modern Slavery victims will be related to Campsfield 
House, which is a Home Office, Immigration Detention Centre 

  

                                            

8 The National Referral Mechanism (NRM) is a framework for identifying and referring potential victims of 
modern slavery and ensuring they receive the appropriate support.  

Page 94

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/human-trafficking-victims-referral-and-assessment-forms/guidance-on-the-national-referral-mechanism-for-potential-adult-victims-of-modern-slavery-england-and-wales


30 April 2020   Page | 31  

6.8. Hate Crimes and Incidents 

According to the latest Home Office Hate Crime bulletin (Oct 2016)9, Hate crime is 
defined as: 

‘any criminal offence which is perceived, by the victim or any other person, to 
be motivated by hostility or prejudice towards someone based on a personal 
characteristic.’  

This common definition was agreed in 2007 by the Police, Crown Prosecution 
Service, Prison Service (now the National Offender Management Service) and other 
agencies that make up the criminal justice system.  There are five centrally 
monitored strands of hate crime: 

• race or ethnicity 

• religion or beliefs 

• sexual orientation 

• disability 

• transgender identity 

Between 2018 and 2019, there were increases in racist crimes and occurrences, 
homophobic crimes and occurrences in Oxfordshire and transphobic occurrences.   

Oxford City had the greatest number of hate crimes in each category and accounted 
for most of the increase in racist crimes and occurrences. 

 

Table 13: Hate crime - crimes and offences in Oxfordshire by type 

 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019 

Racist Crime 375 530 531 51 

Racist All Occurrences 742 716 754 38 

Faith Crime 40 40 38 -2 

Faith All Occurrences 63 52 47 -5 

Disablist Crime 35 76 74 -2 

Disablist All Occurrences 111 123 127 4 

Homophobic Crime 47 79 92 13 

Homophobic All Occurrences 107 110 121 11 

Transphobic Crime 2 20 20 0 

Transphobic All Occurrences 11 29 37 8 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020). Note: The 
hate crime data is for all victims of any occurrence where one or more of the hate crime qualifiers has 
been used - Racial Incident Finalisation, Racial Incident Latest, Faith Incident Finalisation, Faith 
Incident Latest, Disablist Incident Finalisation, Disablist Incident Latest, Homophobic Incident 
Finalisation, Homophobic Incident Latest or Transphobic Incident Finalisation, Transphobic Latest. 
The data will include people who have been victims of hate crime on multiple occasions over the 
period. 

 

                                            

9 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/hate-crime-england-and-wales-2015-to-2016  

Page 95

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/hate-crime-england-and-wales-2015-to-2016


30 April 2020   Page | 32  

In 2019, Thames Valley Police recorded 934 victims of hate crime in Oxfordshire.  
This was 6% above the number recorded in 2018 (882) and well above the number 
in 2016 (681). 

 

Table 14  Number of police recorded victims of Hate crime offences (all occurrences, 
crime and non-crime) in Oxfordshire 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019 

Cherwell 170 212 222 214 -8 

Oxford 304 416 393 424 31 

South Oxfordshire 85 90 100 108 8 

Vale of White Horse 86 79 113 114 1 

West Oxfordshire 36 65 54 74 20 

Oxfordshire TOTAL 681 862 882 934 52 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020). Note: The 
hate crime data is for all victims of any occurrence where one or more of the hate crime qualifiers has 
been used - Racial Incident Finalisation, Racial Incident Latest, Faith Incident Finalisation, Faith 
Incident Latest, Disablist Incident Finalisation, Disablist Incident Latest, Homophobic Incident 
Finalisation, Homophobic Incident Latest or Transphobic Incident Finalisation, Transphobic Latest. 
The data will include people who have been victims of hate crime on multiple occasions over the 
period. 

Table 15  Number of hate crimes by type and district 2019 and change between 2018 
and 2019 

Recorded crimes in 2019 (Jan to Dec)     

 Racist Crime Faith Crime 
Disablist 

Crime 
Homophobic 

Crime 
Transphobic 

Crime 

Cherwell 134 7 16 17 6 

Oxford 304 25 18 43 11 

South Oxfordshire 59 2 11 10 2 

Vale of White Horse 49 2 17 13 0 

West Oxfordshire 35 2 12 9 1 

Oxfordshire 581 38 74 92 20 

CHANGE 2018 to 2019      

 Racist Crime Faith Crime 
Disablist 

Crime 
Homophobic 

Crime 
Transphobic 

Crime 

Cherwell 8 1 -1 -4 0 

Oxford 35 2 -10 8 5 

South Oxfordshire 7 0 0 2 -3 

Vale of White Horse -11 -5 5 3 -2 

West Oxfordshire 12 0 4 4 0 

Oxfordshire 51 -2 -2 13 0 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS (extracted Jan 2020) 

 

Page 96



30 April 2020   Page | 33  

6.9. Child victims of crime 

National Crime Survey for England and Wales data shows an increase in the rate of 
victims of crime for young people aged 10-15, driven by increases in robbery, 
personal theft and criminal damage to personal property.  

The fall in the rate of child victims of violence has continued a declining trend and is 
significantly below the rate in 2011. 

 

Figure 10  National crime survey: prevalence of young people aged 10-15 as victims of 
crime by crime type, preferred measure* 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: ONS Crime in England and Wales year ending September 2019 Appendix Tables 
*The ‘Preferred measure’ takes into account factors identified as important in determining the severity 
of an incidence (such as level of injury, value of item stolen or damaged, relationship with the 
perpetrator) while the ‘Broad measure’ counts all incidents which would be legally defined as crimes 
and therefore may include low-level incidents between children. 

 

 

Page 97

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/datasets/crimeinenglandandwalesappendixtables


30 April 2020   Page | 34  

In 2019, Thames Valley Police recorded 3,939 children aged 0-17 as victims of crime 
in Oxfordshire.  This was 12% above the number recorded in 2018 (3,526) and well 
above the number in 2015 (+1,377, +54%). 

Oxford City had the highest number and rate per population. 

 

Table 16  Number of children (aged 0 - 17) recorded by Thames Valley Police as 
victims of crime in Oxfordshire for the calendar years 2015 - 2019 

 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019 

per 1,000 
pop aged 

0-17 

Cherwell 646 757 784 910 975 65 7% 3% 

Oxford 856 961 986 1,165 1,228 63 5% 4% 

South Oxfordshire 376 434 489 522 650 128 25% 2% 

Vale of White Horse 394 453 453 503 598 95 19% 2% 

West Oxfordshire 290 289 374 426 488 62 15% 2% 

Oxfordshire 2,562 2,894 3,086 3,526 3,939 413 12% 3% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System: NICHE RMS, extracted 18/02/2020.   
Note: The above data is representative of the number of children (aged 0-17) who have been victims 
of crime in the calendar year.  Report filters set to 'Valid Crimes' and Age at time of Offence 'Less 
than 17'.  
    

Between 2018 and 2019, the increase in the number of male child victims was 15%, 
almost double the growth in female victims (8%). 

The likelihood of being a child victim of crime increases with age of child.   

o An 11-year-old is twice as likely as a 10-year-old to be a victim of crime and  
o a 17-year-old is twice as like as an 11-year-old to be a victim of crime. 

 

Figure 11  Children recorded as victims of crime in 2019 in Oxfordshire by single year 
of age, as percentage of population 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System: NICHE RMS; ONS 2018 population estimate 

Page 98



30 April 2020   Page | 35  

6.10. Older victims of Abuse 

From January to December 2019, police recorded 377 older victims (aged 65 and 
over) of violence against the person or sexual offences in Oxfordshire.  This was 
similar to the number in 2018 (376). 

In 2019, this was equivalent to 3.0 older victims per 1,000 population aged 65+ in 
Oxfordshire. The rate was above the county average in Oxford (4.7) and Cherwell 
(3.2). 

 

Table 17  Police recorded victims of violence and sexual offences aged 65 and over, 
2016 to 2019 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 

2018 
to 

2019 

per 1,000 
pop aged 

65+ 

Cherwell 46 42 75 85 10 3.2 

Oxford 48 73 76 88 12 4.7 

South Oxfordshire 46 52 87 71 -16 2.4 

Vale of White Horse 37 45 75 70 -5 2.6 

West Oxfordshire 34 27 58 63 5 2.7 

Oxfordshire 211 239 371 377 6 3.0 

Source: Thames Valley Police; rate calculated as a proportion of population aged 65 and over ONS 
2019 mid-year estimate 

 

  

Page 99



30 April 2020   Page | 36  

7. Offending and Re-offending 

7.1. Children in custody 

In 2019/20 there was a total of 3 young people in Oxfordshire given a custodial 
sentence.  These young people were male and aged 16 and 1710. 

The number of children in custody in 2019/20 was below each of the previous years 
(11 in 2018/19 and 9 in 2017/18). 

The national benchmarking measure11 is the rate per 1,000 of the local 10-17 
population on a rolling year.  Oxfordshire performs better than both statistical 
neighbours and the national average.  As of 2018/19 (the latest data) Oxfordshire 
was 0.15 per 1,000 compared with 0.18 for statistical neighbours and 0.38 nationally. 

7.2. First-time entrants to the Youth Justice System 

Between 2017/18 and 2018/19, the rate of first-time entrants to the Youth Justice 
System declined in Oxfordshire.  In 2018/19 the rate for Oxfordshire was slightly 
above the average for English County Local Authorities. 

• The rate of first-time entrants to the Youth Justice System (per 100,000 
people aged 10-17 years) in Oxfordshire in 2018/19 was 201.  

• This is higher than the average of English County Local Authorities (177), 
however below previous years (213 in 2017/18 and 260 in 2016/17).  

 

Figure 12  First-time entrants to the Youth Justice System rate per 100,000 young 
people aged 10-17, Oxfordshire vs English County Local Authorities  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: LG Inform from Ministry of Justice data (accessed 28 February 2020); note that data is no 
longer available at Local Authority level in the criminal justice system quarterly statistics series 

 

                                            

10 Oxfordshire County Council 

11 See Youth Justice Statistics 2018/19 published January 2020 

3
2

1

4
1

2

3
0

8

2
9

7

2
6

0

2
1

3

2
0

1

4
9

0

3
9

1

3
6

1

3
1

6

2
7

8

2
1

8

1
7

7

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

ra
te

 p
er

 1
0

0
,0

0
0

 y
o

u
n

g 
p

eo
p

le
 

ag
ed

 1
0

-1
7

Oxfordshire

Mean for all English County Local Authorities

Page 100

https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=123&mod-period=7&mod-area=E10000025&mod-group=AllCountiesInCountry_England&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/862078/youth-justice-statistics-bulletin-march-2019.pdf


30 April 2020   Page | 37  

7.3. Juvenile re-offending 

The one-year proven re-offending rate of juvenile offenders in Oxfordshire for the 
period January 2017 to December 2017 was 27.8 percent. The Oxfordshire one-year 
proven re-offending rate was lower than the national rate of 38.6 percent.   

In the period January 2017 to December 2017, there were 255 Juvenile offenders 
and 71 re-offenders committing a total of 351 re-offences.  This was below the 284 
juvenile offenders and 110 re-offenders committing 376 re-offences in 2016. 

The chart below illustrates the district Juvenile re-offending rates. Cherwell and Vale 
of White Horse had similar juvenile re-offending rates to England and Wales 
average. 

 

Figure 7  Proven Juvenile re-offending rates January 2017 to December 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: MOJ Proven Re-offending (2019)  
NOTE: * West Oxfordshire contains a very low cohort (23 offenders) 

 

Note that, although the number of juvenile offenders and re-offenders has declined, 
those who are in the Youth Justice System (YJS) are more complex than before.   

 

7.4. Adult re-offending 

The ‘proven re-offending rate’ measures the proportion of offenders who reoffend.   

The one-year proven re-offending rate of adult offenders in Oxfordshire, for the 
period January 2017 to December 2017 was 28.7 percent12. This was lower than the 
previous re-offending rate of 29.3 percent for the period January 2016 to December 
2016.   

The Oxfordshire one-year proven re-offending rate for this period was similar to the 
national rate of 28.6 percent. The following chart illustrates the district re-offending 
rates. Cherwell and Oxford each had higher re-offending rates compared with the 
county and national averages. 

                                            

12 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/proven-reoffending-statistics-january-to-march-2017  

Page 101

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/proven-reoffending-statistics-january-to-march-2017


30 April 2020   Page | 38  

Figure 13  Proven Adult re-offending rates January 2017 to December 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: MOJ Proven Re-offending (2019)  

 

For the period January 2017 to December 2017, there were 6,625 adult offenders 
who had been released from custody, received a non-custodial conviction at court, 
received a caution, or received a reprimand or warning. Of these 1,140 (28.7%) re-
offended, committing a total of 4,499 re-offences. Figures may tend to fluctuate due 
to different cohorts of offenders. 

 

8. Fraud and Cyber related offences 

8.1. Doorstep crime 

Doorstep Crime can affect anyone, but often elderly and vulnerable people are 
targeted by Rogue Traders offering home improvement services, or by Bogus 
Callers who claim to be from the council, police, health carers, market researchers or 
utility and phone companies. 

Doorstep crime incidents are notified to Oxfordshire County Council’s Trading 
Standards Doorstep crime team via police referrals, phone calls to the Doorstep 
crime team direct or through intelligence reports. 

In 2018-19 there were 277 victims of doorstep crime or rogue traders in Oxfordshire, 
down from 284 in the previous year, a fall of 2% (-7)13. 

The majority of victims continue to be elderly residents. 

The top 3 types of “services” were (1) Roofing, (2) Gardening and landscaping and 
(3) Product selling14. 

                                            

13 Oxfordshire County Council Trading Standards team 

14 The category ‘product selling’ refers mostly to ‘Nottingham knockers’ who target mostly elderly/ vulnerable 
residents to sell cleaning or kitchen products. This is often linked to burglaries. 

Page 102



30 April 2020   Page | 39  

Table 18  Victims of doorstep crime and rogue traders 

District 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Cherwell 78 99 80 83 80 58 58 

Oxford 67 66 115 85 101 58 50 

South Oxfordshire 83 97 42 63 73 62 67 

Vale of White Horse 97 89 56 80 58 44 55 

West Oxfordshire 48 79 50 49 53 36 45 

SUM of districts 373 430 343 360 365 258 275 

District not recorded 20 197 34 19 12 26 2 

TOTAL Oxfordshire 393 627 377 379 377 284 277 

Source: Oxfordshire County Council Trading Standards  

 

8.2. Fraud  

Fraud arises when trickery is used to gain a dishonest advantage, which is often 
financial, over another person.  Fraud can be committed against individuals or 
businesses. There are numerous types of fraud15 including identity theft, advanced 
fee fraud (victim asked to pay upfront for goods), bank and cheque fraud and online 
fraud.  

There are three main sources of data on fraud:  

• incidents of fraud reported to the Crime Survey for England and Wales 
(CSEW), including both the existing plastic card fraud series and newly 
introduced questions on fraud and computer misuse.  Note that data is not 
available from this source for fraud affecting businesses and the sample is not 
large enough to provide estimates at a county level. 

• incidents of fraud referred to the National Fraud Intelligence Bureau (NFIB) by 
Action Fraud (the public facing national fraud and cybercrime reporting centre) 
as well as two industry bodies, Cifas and Financial Fraud Action UK (FFA UK, 
now a constituent part of UK Finance), who report instances of fraud where 
their member organisations have been a victim. 

• additional data collected by UK Finance on a broader range of bank account 
and plastic card frauds than those referred to the NFIB, using a system called 
CAMIS. 

Since March 2013, Action Fraud has been responsible for the recording of fraud 
offences rather than individual police forces.  

 

In 2019 (Jan-Dec) Thames Valley Police recorded 670 fraud offences in Oxfordshire 
passed from Action Fraud for further action.  This was above the number in 2018 
(545).  The increase between 2018 and 2019 in Oxfordshire of 23% was just below 
the increase across Thames Valley (+26%). 

                                            

15 See Action Fraud for a list of types of fraud http://www.actionfraud.police.uk/types_of_fraud  

Page 103

http://www.actionfraud.police.uk/types_of_fraud


30 April 2020   Page | 40  

Note that these offences are limited to those passed to Thames Valley Police from 
Action Fraud for further action and give only a partial picture of fraud in Oxfordshire. 

 

Table 19  Fraud offences recorded by Thames Valley Police (passed from Action 
Fraud as requiring further action) 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019 

Cherwell 62 65 133 149 16 12% 

Oxford 64 91 178 200 22 12% 

South Oxfordshire 46 41 84 117 33 39% 

Vale of White Horse 52 55 89 117 28 31% 

West Oxfordshire 20 36 61 87 26 43% 

Oxfordshire TOTAL 244 288 545 670 125 23% 

THAMES VALLEY 1,118 1,211 2,024 2,546 522 26% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche (extracted Jan 2020); Note: the 
above data is for all occurrences that have been reported under the occurrence type of Action Fraud - 
Call For Service and Action Fraud - NFIB Referral  

 

8.3. Cyber-related Offences 

Cybercrime is an umbrella term used to describe two closely linked, but distinct 
ranges of criminal activity. The Government's National Cyber Security Strategy16 
(published in November 2016) defines them as follows: 

1.Cyber-dependent crimes - crimes that can be committed only through the use of 
Information and Communications Technology (ICT) devices, where the devices are 
both the tool for committing the crime, and the target of the crime (e.g. developing 
and propagating malware for financial gain, hacking to steal, damage, distort or 
destroy data and/or network or activity). 

2.Cyber-enabled crimes - traditional crimes which can be increased in scale or reach 
by the use of computers, computer networks or other forms of ICT (such as cyber-
enabled fraud and data theft). 

In 2019 Thames Valley Police recorded a total of 727 Cyber-related offences in 
Oxfordshire.   

Overall this was below the number recorded in 2018 (816), however that year was 
inflated by the offences of a single person in South Oxfordshire.   

Between 2018 and 2019, Cherwell, Oxford, Vale of White Horse and West 
Oxfordshire have each seen an increase in cyber-related offences. 

 

                                            

16 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-cyber-security-strategy-2016-to-2021  

Page 104

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-cyber-security-strategy-2016-to-2021


30 April 2020   Page | 41  

Table 20  Cyber-related Offences (Crime and Non-Crime) Oxfordshire (calendar year) 

 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019 

Cherwell 132 158 85 132 194 62 47% 

Oxford 145 141 84 124 160 36 29% 

South Oxfordshire 69 100 59 381* 124 -257 -67% 

Vale of White Horse 85 94 45 99 106 7 7% 

West Oxfordshire 75 67 51 80 143 63 79% 

Oxfordshire 506 560 324 816 727 -89 -11% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS, January 2020;  *Note that, of 
the 381 offences recorded in South Oxfordshire in 2018, 287 of those were linked to one person who 
was responsible for indecent images/sexual activity offences with a lot of different people, committed 
on-line. 

 

9. Mental Health – Detentions under Section 136 

Section 136 of the Mental Health Act enables the police to act if they believe that 
someone is suffering from a mental illness and needs immediate treatment or care. 
The police may take that person from a public place to a place of safety, either for 
their own protection or for the protection of others. This is known as a Section 136 
detention. 

Between 2018 and 2019, there was a significant increase in section 136 detentions 
in Oxfordshire, from 294 to 426 (+132, +45%). 

During the six years from 2014 to 2019, there was a total of 1,849 Section 136 
detentions in Oxfordshire of which 803 (43%) were in Oxford City. 

In the latest year, there were increases in detentions in all districts with the greatest 
percentage increases in South Oxfordshire and Vale of White Horse districts. 

 

Figure 14  Number of Section 136 detentions 2014 to 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Thames Valley Crime Recording System - NICHE RMS & Mental Health Master, Jan20 

 

 

Page 105



30 April 2020   Page | 42  

In 2019 in Oxfordshire, the breakdown of S136 detentions by broad age was: 

• 45 (11%) people aged under 20  

• 209 (49%) people aged 20-39 

• 132 (31%) people aged 40-59 

• 15 (4%) people aged 60+ 

• (remainder were people with unknown age) 

The rate of S136 detentions per 1,000 population of three years combined (2017, 
2018 and 2019) was highest in Oxford City (2.7 compared with 1.5 across 
Oxfordshire). 

 

Figure 15  Rate of section 136 detentions per population by broad age (three years of 
data, 2017, 2018 and 2019) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Thames Valley Crime Recording System - NICHE RMS & Mental Health Master, Jan20 

 

For the combined four years of 2016 to 2019, the total number of male and female 
S136 detainees in Oxfordshire was similar. 

 

Figure 16  Count of Section 136 detentions in Oxfordshire 2016 to 2019 by sex 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Thames Valley Crime Recording System - NICHE RMS & Mental Health Master, Jan20 

Find out more Joint Strategic Needs Assessment focused on Mental Health in Oxfordshire 

0

50

100

150

200

250

2016 2017 2018 2019

Female

Male

Page 106

https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/mental-health-jsna-february-2018


30 April 2020   Page | 43  

10. Alcohol and Drugs 

10.1. Young people 

Alcohol consumption 

According to the 2018 Health survey for England17, alcohol consumption by children 
has continued to decline.  

• The proportion of children aged 8 to 15 reporting ever having had a proper 
alcoholic drink – a whole drink, not just a sip - fell from 45% in 2003 to 14% in 
2018. 

Alcohol hospital admissions 

The number of under 18s in Oxfordshire admitted to hospital for alcohol-specific 
conditions in the three-year period 2016/17 to 2018/19 was 165.  

The rate of hospital admissions for alcohol-specific conditions in females under 18 in 
Oxfordshire has remained above the England average in the latest data (2016/17-
2018/19).  The rate for males in Oxfordshire has remained similar to average.  

 

                                            

17 https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/health-survey-for-england/2018  Note: 
The Health Survey for England data on alcohol consumption by children was collected in participants' homes 
via a self-completed questionnaire. However, previous studies have shown that children feel able to answer 
questions on risky behaviours more honestly when asked away from the home setting. Therefore HSE will 
underestimate the level of alcohol consumption amongst children. 

Page 107

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/health-survey-for-england/2018


30 April 2020   Page | 44  

Figure 17  Hospital admissions for alcohol-specific conditions, under 18s, crude rate 
per 100,000 population, Oxfordshire (to 2016/17-18/19) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Source: Public Health England Alcohol Profiles from Hospital Episode statistics and ONS population 
estimates 

 

Drug arrests 

Between January and December 2019, there was a total of 115 under 18s arrested 
by Thames Valley Police in Oxfordshire for drug offences, down from 128 in 2018 (-
13).  Arrests in Oxford declined by 27. 

The increase in arrests in West Oxfordshire was due to possession of cannabis. 

 

Table 21  The number of Under 18s arrested for Drug offences in Oxfordshire by 
district 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018-19 

Cherwell 20 29 28 29 1 4% 

Oxford 29 41 67 40 -27 -40% 

South Oxfordshire 11 6 2 9 7 350% 

Vale of White Horse 3 9 18 17 -1 -6% 

West Oxfordshire 1 5 13 20 7 54% 

Oxfordshire 64 90 128 115 -13 -10% 
Source: Thames Valley Police Custody Recording System - NICHE RMS, extracted January 2020; 
NOTE: if an individual has been arrested within Oxfordshire on more than one occasion within a year, 
they have only been counted once. 

 

Males 

England 

Females 

Oxfordshire 

England 

Oxfordshire 

Females count (2016/17-
2018/19) = 105 

Males count (2016/17-
2018/19) = 60 

Page 108



30 April 2020   Page | 45  

Substance misuse services 

National data18 for 2018/19 shows that: 

• Around 1 in 5 (20.3%) people aged 16-24 had taken a drug in the last year, 
with an apparent increase since the 2015/16 survey (18.0%); 

• 1 in 11 (8.7%) 16-24 year olds had taken a Class A drug in the last year. 

In 2018/19 the number of young people (aged under 18 years) in specialist 
substance misuse services in Oxfordshire was 18519. This was up from 148 in 
2017/18 and 102 in 2016/17. 

• 71 began using their main substance before they reached 15 years of age, 

• 79 were using two or more substance (this includes Alcohol), 

• 30 reported being affected by others’ substance misuse, 

• 47 identified as having a mental health treatment needs, 

• 40 receiving treatment for their mental health need(s) 

Referrals were predominantly from education services (31%) and children and family 
services (47%). 

  

                                            

18 Home Office, Drugs Misuse: Findings from the 2018/19 Crime Survey for England and Wales 

19 Oxfordshire County Council, Public Health team 

Page 109

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/drug-misuse-findings-from-the-2018-to-2019-csew


30 April 2020   Page | 46  

10.2. Adults 

Alcohol hospital admissions 

Data on hospital admissions for alcohol-related conditions in Oxfordshire20 shows 
that:  

• Overall, males continue to have higher rates than females for alcohol-related 
admission episodes. 

• Although admissions in Oxfordshire are significantly lower than England in all 
adult age groups for both males and females, between 2017/18 and 2018/19 
there has been an increase in admissions for both males and females across 
all three age groups. 

• National data show that these admissions tend to be more prevalent in more 
deprived groups. 

Drug users 

The latest estimate of the number people using opiate and/or crack cocaine in 
Oxfordshire in 2016/1721 was 3,416 (confidence interval range 2,024 to 4,747).   

In 2018/19, there were 40 hospital admissions for drug-related mental and 
behavioural disorders in Oxfordshire. This equates to 6 admissions per 100,000 
population, lower than the regional (7 per 100,000) and national (13 per 100,000) 
rates. 

Local data shows that Oxfordshire has one of the lowest rates of deaths from drug 
misuse in the South East region and is significantly lower than the England 
average22.   

• There were 48 deaths (rate 2.4 per 100,000) from drug misuse between 2016 
and 2018 in Oxfordshire, compared to 1,021 in South East (rate 3.9).  More 
than half of these deaths were in Oxford City. 

Drug and alcohol treatment 

In 2018/19 there were 1,870 adults (aged 18 and over) in specialist drug treatment in 
Oxfordshire. This is down (again) by 2% from last year. 

The majority of those in drug treatment were aged between 30 to 49 (1,346, 72%) 

The number of adults in treatment for alcohol only in Oxfordshire in 2018/19 was 587 
(up from 561 in 2017/18), the majority of whom were aged 30 to 59. (78%) 

Find out more: Oxfordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

                                            

20 Source: Public Health England Local Alcohol Profiles 

21 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/opiate-and-crack-cocaine-use-prevalence-estimates-for-
local-populations last updated March 2019;  

22 Public Health England Mortality Profile 

Page 110

http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/joint-strategic-needs-assessment
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/local-alcohol-profiles
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/opiate-and-crack-cocaine-use-prevalence-estimates-for-local-populations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/opiate-and-crack-cocaine-use-prevalence-estimates-for-local-populations
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/mortality-profile/data


30 April 2020   Page | 47  

10.3. Alcohol-related crime 

In 2019 (Jan-Dec), Thames Valley Police recorded a total of 2,221 alcohol-related 
crimes in Oxfordshire, just below number in 2018 (2,248).   

The rate per 1,000 population aged 16+ in 2019 was highest in Oxford City (7.7) and 
Cherwell (3.4). 

 

Table 22  Alcohol-related crimes, number and % of all crimes in Oxfordshire (2014 to 
2019) 

Number of alcohol-
related crimes 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019 

2019 rate 
per 1,000 
pop aged 

16+ 

Cherwell 239 306 301 476 405 -71 -15% 3.4 

Oxford 593 647 417 923 982 59 6% 7.7 

South Oxfordshire 166 185 153 267 320 53 20% 2.8 

Vale of White Horse 213 230 155 370 293 -77 -21% 2.7 

West Oxfordshire 154 161 129 212 221 9 4% 2.5 

Oxfordshire 1,365 1,529 1,155 2,248 2,221 -27 -1% 4.0 
Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS, January 2020; Note: This data 
is for all recorded crimes in Oxfordshire where the substance use field has been recorded as 'Alcohol' 
related. The Alcohol related data has not been subject to validation. 

 

11. Knife crime 
Between 2018 and 2019 there was an increase in the number of crimes related to 
the possession of a knife in Oxfordshire from 146 to 167 (+21, +14%), just above the 
increase across the Thames Valley region. 

The 167 possession of knife crimes in Oxfordshire in 2019 involved 137 recorded 
offenders, 37 of whom were aged under 18 and 27 victims (3 were aged under 18). 

 

Table 23  Number of crimes relating to the possession of an article with a blade or 
point (calendar year) 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019 

Cherwell 33 43 41 40 -1 -2% 

Oxford 63 81 74 76 2 3% 

South Oxfordshire 20 8 7 17 10 143% 

Vale of White Horse 9 18 13 17 4 31% 

West Oxfordshire 6 5 11 17 6 55% 

Oxfordshire 131 155 146 167 21 14% 

Thames Valley 552 657 671 744 73 11% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS extracted 23/03/2020. The data 
is inclusive of valid crimes only.  The period covered is anything recorded between 1st January 2016 
and 31st December 2019.  Home Office Category Number in list to 10D - includes classification of; 
Possession of Article with Blade or Point', 'Having an article with a blade or point in a public place', 
'Having an article with a blade or point on school premises', 'Threaten with an article with a blade or 
point in a public place' and 'Threaten with an article with a blade or point on school premises'..  

Page 111



30 April 2020   Page | 48  

In 2019 there were 335 violent, sexual and robbery offences recorded in Oxfordshire 
where a sharp or bladed implement was linked to the offence as a weapon. This 7% 
above the number in 2018 (312).  The increase across Thames Valley was +6%. 

 

Table 24  Violent, sexual and robbery offences recorded in Oxfordshire where a sharp 
or bladed implement was linked to the offence as a weapon (calendar year) 

 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018 to 2019  

Cherwell 45 77 79 71 -8 -10% 

Oxford 91 114 131 159 28 21% 

South Oxfordshire 25 32 31 34 3 10% 

Vale of White Horse 23 24 37 36 -1 -3% 

West Oxfordshire 18 20 34 35 1 3% 

Oxfordshire 202 267 312 335 23 7% 

Thames Valley 971 1,240 1,477 1,560 83 6% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS extracted January 2020. Note: 
the above information is for knife crime offence that meet the Home Office definition.  These are 
certain violent offences, sexual offences and robbery offences where a sharp, pointed or bladed 
instrument has been used to pierce the skin or used as a threat.  
 

 

  

Page 112



30 April 2020   Page | 49  

12. Road casualties 
In 2019, there was a total of 1,389 police-reported road casualties in Oxfordshire of 
which 232 were the more serious Killed or Seriously Injured (KSI).  This was a 
decline of 8.5% on the number in 2018 (1,513 in total including 273 KSI) . 

Child (aged 0-15) casualties decreased from 115 in 2018 to 98 in 2019.  Children 
Killed or Seriously Injured increased slightly from 13 in 2018 to 19 in 2019 (there 
were no fatal casualties in this age group). 

By vehicle type 

The split of Killed or Seriously Injured (KSI) casualties by vehicle type in Oxfordshire 
in 2019 was 41% car driver or car passenger, 19% pedal cycle, 19% motorcycle and 
13% pedestrian. 

Compared with the average for 2010-14, KSI causalities have declined for all vehicle 
types, whilst reductions can be seen when compared with the 2018 figures - apart 
from pedal cyclist numbers which have seen no change.  

Table 25  Killed and Seriously Injured casualties by vehicle type to 2019, Oxfordshire  

 
2010-14 
average 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Change 
from 10-

14 
average 

Change 
from 
2018 

Pedestrians 50 51 44 37 36 31 -38% -14% 

Pedal cyclists 66 67 72 61 45 45 -32% 0% 

Motorcycle  78 94 75 64 51 45 -42% -10% 

Car occupants 139 122 153 107 127 93 -33% -27% 

All road users 352 359 358 281 273 232 -34% -15% 
Source: Oxfordshire County Council Traffic and Road Safety 2019  

 

By age and gender 

The age group with the highest number of road accident causalities in Oxfordshire in 
2019 for both males and females was aged 25-34.  

Figure 18  Total casualties by age and gender, Oxfordshire 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Oxfordshire County Council Traffic and Road Safety 2019  

0

50

100

150

200

250

0-15 16-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 plus unknown

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
ca

su
al

ti
es

age group

Female Male

Page 113



30 April 2020   Page | 50  

Alcohol-related road traffic accidents 

In the last five-year period 2015 to 2019 there was 237 road traffic accidents in 
Oxfordshire where at least one driver either failed an alcohol breath test or refused to 
provide a sample when requested. 

This latest data puts Oxfordshire above the national average on the crude rate of 
alcohol-related road traffic accidents (per 1,000 accidents), although both follow a 
similar trend pattern up to 2018 (latest available National data) and compare similarly 
to Oxfordshire’s statistical neighbours. 

 

Table 26  Alcohol-related road traffic accidents 

 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Oxfordshire      

All Accidents (Oxon) 1622 1502 1293 1153 1094 

Breath Test Accidents (Oxon) 54 54 47 48 34 

Breath Test Accs per 1,000 Accs (Oxon) 33.3 36 36.3 41.6 31.1 

Great Britain      

All Accidents (GB) 140,056 136,621 129,982 122,635 

no data Drink Drive Accidents (GB) 5,730 6,070 5,700 5,900 

Drink Drive Accs per 1,000 Accs (GB) 40.9 44.4 43.9 48.1 
Source: Oxfordshire County Council Traffic and Road Safety 2019  

 

Figure 19  Alcohol-related road traffic accidents (rate per 1,000 accidents) 

 

Source: Oxfordshire County Council Traffic and Road Safety 2019  

 

  

Page 114



30 April 2020   Page | 51  

13. Rural crime 
Thames Valley Police defines a rural crime as: 

• Occurring on a farm OR 

• Where the property involved is agricultural or livestock related. 

and 

• The offence is: 
o Burglary 
o Robbery 
o Theft 
o Criminal damage 
o Public health offences (fly-tipping). 

As at mid-2018 (the most recent ONS population estimates), Oxfordshire was the 
most rural county in the South East with 2.6 people per hectare compared with 4.8 
people per hectare across the region.   

Between 2018 and 2019 there was a decline in the number of rural crimes (offences 
meeting the rural definition) in Oxfordshire from 169 in 2018 to 127 in 2019 (-25%).   

 

Table 27  Number of rural crimes in Oxfordshire (rural crime definition) 2014 to 2019 

      2018 to 2019 

 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 (n) (%) 

Cherwell 80 40 47 46 26 -20 -43% 

Oxford 15 12 20 11 10 -1 -9% 

South Oxfordshire 85 37 61 46 33 -13 -28% 

Vale of White Horse 78 27 28 27 21 -6 -22% 

West Oxfordshire 79 41 45 39 37 -2 -5% 

Oxfordshire 337 157 201 169 127 -42 -25% 

Source: Thames Valley Police Crime Recording System - Niche RMS extracted January 2020.  
Note: The above data is for all recorded crimes of rural crime where the offence meets the Rural 
Crime Definition. 

 

  

Page 115



30 April 2020   Page | 52  

Annex 1: Sources of Data 
 

Oxfordshire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment http://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/joi
nt-strategic-needs-assessment 

Oxfordshire Mental Health JSNA, February 2018 https://insight.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/m
ental-health-jsna-february-2018 

ONS Crime in England and Wales, Year Ending 
September 2019 

www.ons.gov.uk/releases/crimeinenglan
dandwalesyearendingseptember2019   

Local crime data www.police.uk/thames-valley/N448/  

HMIC Crime and Police Comparator Data   LG Inform from Ministry of Justice data 

MOJ Proven re-offending www.gov.uk/government/collections/pro
ven-reoffending-statistics 

MOJ Criminal justice statistics quarterly www.gov.uk/government/statistics/crimi
nal-justice-system-statistics-quarterly-
june-2019 

NDTMS Drug Treatment Monitoring www.ndtms.net  

 

Public Health England Local Alcohol Profiles  fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/local-
alcohol-profiles 

Oxfordshire County Council Road Traffic 
Accident statistics 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads
-and-transport/road-safety/road-
casualties  

Further information on road safety The annual National document on 
Reported Road Accidents & Casualties: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/g
overnment/uploads/system/uploads/atta
chment_data/file/834585/reported-road-
casualties-annual-report-2018.pdf 
including a section on the 
“Underreporting of casualties and 
accidents”  

Further data & documents 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publica
tions/road-accidents-and-safety-
statistics-guidance 

Page 116

http://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/crimeinenglandandwalesyearendingseptember2019
http://www.ons.gov.uk/releases/crimeinenglandandwalesyearendingseptember2019
http://www.police.uk/thames-valley/N448/
https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=123&mod-period=7&mod-area=E10000025&mod-group=AllCountiesInCountry_England&mod-type=namedComparisonGroup
http://www.ndtms.net/
http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/local-alcohol-profiles
http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/local-alcohol-profiles
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/road-safety/road-casualties
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/road-safety/road-casualties
http://www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/residents/roads-and-transport/road-safety/road-casualties
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/834585/reported-road-casualties-annual-report-2018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/834585/reported-road-casualties-annual-report-2018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/834585/reported-road-casualties-annual-report-2018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/834585/reported-road-casualties-annual-report-2018.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/road-accidents-and-safety-statistics-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/road-accidents-and-safety-statistics-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/road-accidents-and-safety-statistics-guidance


30 April 2020   Page | 53  

Indices of Deprivation 2019 https://www.gov.uk/government/statisti
cs/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019  

Related reports  

Safeguarding Children at Risk from Criminal 
Exploitation (4 March 2020) 

A qualitative study of 21 cases from 17 local 
areas regarding children who died or 
experienced serious harm where criminal 
exploitation was a factor. 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publica
tions/safeguarding-children-at-risk-from-
criminal-exploitation  

  

 

  

Page 117

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/safeguarding-children-at-risk-from-criminal-exploitation
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/safeguarding-children-at-risk-from-criminal-exploitation
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/safeguarding-children-at-risk-from-criminal-exploitation


30 April 2020   Page | 54  

Annex 2: Crime comparison and trend for districts 
The following table shows numbers and rates (per 1,000 people) of different categories 

of crime recorded in Oxfordshire, by district, for the 12 months to the end of September 

2019. 

As might be expected of an urban centre in a rural county, Oxford City had the 
highest rates of most types of crime. The exceptions were Stalking and Harassment 
which was highest in Cherwell and the rate of Drug offences which were similar in 
Cherwell and Oxford. 

 

Table 28  Numbers and rates of recorded crimes in Oxfordshire and districts, broken 
down by category (12 months to September 2019) * 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Total Crime excluding Fraud 
Rates per 1,000 population used mid-2018 population estimates. 
Source: ONS Police Recorded Crime Statistics (January 2020 data release) 

 

  

N
um

be
r 

o
f 

cr
im

es

R
at

e 
pe

r 
10

00
 

po
pu

la
ti

o
n

N
um

be
r 

o
f 

cr
im

es

R
at

e 
pe

r 
10

00
 

po
pu

la
ti

o
n

N
um

be
r 

o
f 

cr
im

es

R
at

e 
pe

r 
10

00
 

po
pu

la
ti

o
n

N
um

be
r 

o
f 

cr
im

es

R
at

e 
pe

r 
10

00
 

po
pu

la
ti

o
n

N
um

be
r 

o
f 

cr
im

es

R
at

e 
pe

r 
10

00
 

po
pu

la
ti

o
n

N
um

be
r 

o
f 

cr
im

es

R
at

e 
pe

r 
10

00
 

po
pu

la
ti

o
n

VICTIM BASED CRIME 38,669 56.2 8,692   58.3 14,793 95.9 6,152   43.8 4,729   35.4 4,303   39.2

  Violence against the person offences 12,551 18.3 3,198   21.4 4,031   26.1 1,918   13.7 1,791   13.4 1,613   14.7

     Homicide 5           0.0 1           0.0 4           0.0 -       0.0 -       0.0 -       0.0

     Death or injury - unlawful driving 12         0.0 1           0.0 1           0.0 2           0.0 4           0.0 4           0.0

     Violence with injury 4,018   5.8 1,061   7.1 1,271   8.2 596      4.2 583      4.4 507      4.6

     Violence  without injury 5,693   8.3 1,319   8.8 2,039   13.2 862      6.1 794      5.9 679      6.2

     Stalking and harassment 2,823   4.1 816      5.5 716      4.6 458      3.3 410      3.1 423      3.9

  Sexual Offences 1,596   2.3 376      2.5 569      3.7 257      1.8 212      1.6 182      1.7

  Robbery 309      0.4 64         0.4 183      1.2 28         0.2 15         0.1 19         0.2

  Theft offences 19,478 28.3 3,965   26.6 8,560   55.5 3,073   21.9 1,996   14.9 1,884   17.2

  Burglary 2,976   4.3 601      4.0 889      5.8 616      4.4 420      3.1 450      4.1

Residential burglary* 2,088   7.7 389      6.5 661      12.0 413      7.3 295      5.5 330      7.2

Non-residential burglary 888      1.3 212      1.4 228      1.5 203      1.4 125      0.9 120      1.1

Vehicle offences 3,552   5.2 760      5.1 1,175   7.6 750      5.3 475      3.6 392      3.6

Theft from the person 1,041   1.5 176      1.2 625      4.1 94         0.7 59         0.4 87         0.8

Bicycle theft 2,563   3.7 147      1.0 2,146   13.9 102      0.7 111      0.8 57         0.5

Shoplifting 3,836   5.6 1,149   7.7 1,575   10.2 462      3.3 347      2.6 303      2.8

All other theft offences 5,510   8.0 1,132   7.6 2,150   13.9 1,049   7.5 584      4.4 595      5.4

Criminal damage and arson 4,735   6.9 1,089   7.3 1,450   9.4 876      6.2 715      5.3 605      5.5

OTHER CRIMES AGAINST SOCIETY 4,800   7.0 1,316   8.8 1,820   11.8 575      4.1 597      4.5 492      4.5

Drug offences 1,464   2.1 473      3.2 490      3.2 164      1.2 169      1.3 168      1.5

Possession of weapons offences 351      0.5 85         0.6 157      1.0 36         0.3 38         0.3 35         0.3

Public order offences 2,062   3.0 434      2.9 892      5.8 249      1.8 297      2.2 190      1.7

Miscellaneous crimes against society 923      1.3 324      2.2 281      1.8 126      0.9 93         0.7 99         0.9

TOTAL RECORDED CRIME* 43,469 63.2 10,008 67.1 16,613 107.7 6,727   47.9 5,326   39.8 4,795   43.7

West OxfordshireOxfordshire Cherwell Oxford

South 

Oxfordshire

Vale of White 

Horse

Page 118



30 April 2020   Page | 55  

Figure 20  Change in overall crime and individual crime categories and groups for 
districts between (12 months to) September 2018 and (12 months to) September 2019  

Cherwell 

 

Oxford 

 

 

  

Page 119



30 April 2020   Page | 56  

 

South Oxfordshire 

 

Vale of White Horse 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 120



30 April 2020   Page | 57  

 

West Oxfordshire 

 

Source: ONS, January 2020 data release 

NOTE: Graphs exclude the offences ‘Homicide’ and ‘Death or injury - unlawful driving’ due to small 
numbers 

  

Page 121



30 April 2020   Page | 58  

For each district in Oxfordshire, the following tables show: 

1. the crime rate per 1,000 population compared with their most similar local 
authorities/community safety partnerships area; 

2. the change in crime rate in the quarter between July-June 2018 and July-June 
2019*.  

*NOTE: data is not yet released for the 12 months to September 2019  

 

For the comparison with most similar local authorities:23 

• “Above Average” means that the crime rate was within the highest 25% for the corresponding 
“similar areas group”  

• “Average” means that the crime rate was within the middle 50% for the corresponding “similar areas 
group” 

• “Below Average” means that the crime rate was within the lowest 25% for the corresponding 
“similar areas group” 

 

For each district authority the change in crime rate: 

• “” means that in the quarter ending 30th September 2018, the crime rate was up compared with 
the corresponding quarter in 2017 

• “▬” means that in the quarter ending 30th September 2018, the crime rate was the same (to one 
decimal place) compared with the corresponding quarter in 2017 

• “” means that in the quarter ending 30th September 2018, the crime rate was down compared 
with the corresponding quarter in 2017 

 

  

                                            

23 A detailed methodology and statistical differences are explained in the compare your area user guide: 
http://policeuk.s3.amazonaws.com/iquanta/Compare_Your_Area-_User_Guide.pdf 

Page 122

http://policeuk.s3.amazonaws.com/iquanta/Compare_Your_Area-_User_Guide.pdf


30 April 2020   Page | 59  

Cherwell 

The overall crime rate in Cherwell was the same as the average of other comparator 
areas.  Drugs offences and Other crime were above average AND increasing in 
Cherwell. 

 

Table 29  Cherwell - Recorded crime rate comparison 12 months to June19 

Cherwell Rate per 1,000 
population 

Comparison with 
most similar LA/CSP 

Trend 

July-June 2018 to 
July-June 2019 

All crime 66.8 Average 

Bicycle theft 1.1 Average 

Burglary 4.3 Below average 

Criminal damage and arson 7.5 Average 

Drugs 3.0 Above average 

Other crime 2.2 Above average 

Other theft 7.9 Above average 

Possession of weapons 0.4 Average 

Public order 2.9 Below average 

Robbery 0.5 Average 

Shoplifting 7.4 Above average 

Theft from the person 1.1 Above average 

Vehicle crime 5.3 Average 

Violence and sexual offences 23.2 Average 

Source: HMICFRS (January 2019 data release), rate calculated using ONS 2018 mid-year population estimate.  
NOTE: this data is from a different source and time period to the bar charts shown in fig 4 

Oxford 

The overall crime rate in Oxford was average compared with other comparator 
areas.  No offences were above average AND increasing in Oxford. 

 

Table 30  Oxford - Recorded crime rate comparison 12 months to June19 

Oxford 
Rate per 1,000 

population 
Comparison with 

most similar LA/CSP 

Trend 

July-June 2018 to 
July-June 2019 

All crime 105.8 Average 

Bicycle theft 13.3 Above average 

Burglary 6.1 Average 

Criminal damage and arson 9.4 Average 

Drugs 3.3 Average 

Other crime 1.7 Average 

Other theft 13.9 Above average 

Possession of weapons 1.0 Average 

Public order 5.6 Below average 

Robbery 1.3 Average 

Shoplifting 9.8 Average 

Theft from the person 3.8 Above average 

Vehicle crime 7.0 Average 

Violence and sexual offences 29.7 Average 

Source: HMICFRS (January 2019 data release), rate calculated using ONS 2018 mid-year population estimate.  
NOTE: this data is from a different source and time period to the bar charts shown in fig 4 

Page 123



30 April 2020   Page | 60  

South Oxfordshire 

The overall crime rate in South Oxfordshire was below average compared with other 
comparator areas.  No offences were above average AND increasing in South 
Oxfordshire. 

 

Table 31  South Oxfordshire - Recorded crime rate comparison 12 months to June19 

South Oxfordshire Rate per 1,000 
population 

Comparison with 
most similar LA/CSP 

Trend 

July-June 2018 to 
July-June 2019 

All crime 45.3 Below average 

Bicycle theft 0.7 Average 

Burglary 4.1 Below average 

Criminal damage and arson 6.1 Average 

Drugs 1.0 Below average 

Other crime 0.8 Below average 

Other theft 6.9 Average 

Possession of weapons 0.2 Below average 

Public order 1.7 Below average 

Robbery 0.2 Below average 

Shoplifting 3.3 Average 

Theft from the person 0.5 Average 

Vehicle crime 5.1 Average 

Violence and sexual offences 14.7 Below average 

Source: HMICFRS (January 2019 data release), rate calculated using ONS 2018 mid-year population estimate.  
NOTE: this data is from a different source and time period to the bar charts shown in fig 4 

 

Vale of White Horse 

The overall crime rate in Vale of White Horse district was below the average of other 
comparator areas.  No offences were above average AND increasing in Vale of 
White Horse. 

 

Table 32  Vale of White Horse - Recorded crime rate comparison 12 months to June19 

Vale of White Horse Rate per 1,000 
population 

Comparison with 
most similar LA/CSP 

Trend 

July-June 2018 to 
July-June 2019 

All crime 40.2 Below average 

Bicycle theft 0.9 Average 

Burglary 3.1 Below average 

Criminal damage and arson 5.6 Below average 

Drugs 1.3 Average 

Other crime 0.7 Below average 

Other theft 4.8 Below average 

Possession of weapons 0.3 Below average 

Public order 1.9 Below average 

Robbery 0.1 Below average 

Shoplifting 2.8 Below average 

Theft from the person 0.4 Average 

Vehicle crime 3.5 Below average 

Violence and sexual offences 14.8 Below average 

Source: HMICFRS (January 2019 data release), rate calculated using ONS 2018 mid-year population estimate.  
NOTE: this data is from a different source and time period to the bar charts shown in fig 4 

Page 124



30 April 2020   Page | 61  

West Oxfordshire 

The overall crime rate and most crime categories in West Oxfordshire district were 
below the average for other comparator areas.  No offences were above average 
AND increasing in West Oxfordshire. 

 

Table 33  West Oxfordshire - Recorded crime rate comparison 12 months to June19 

West Oxfordshire Rate per 1,000 
population 

Comparison with 
most similar LA/CSP 

Trend 

July-June 2018 to 
July-June 2019 

All crime 41.6 Below average 

Bicycle theft 0.6 Average 

Burglary 3.9 Below average 

Criminal damage and arson 5.2 Below average 

Drugs 1.4 Average 

Other crime 0.9 Below average 

Other theft 5.4 Below average 

Possession of weapons 0.4 Below average 

Public order 1.7 Below average 

Robbery 0.2 Below average 

Shoplifting 2.5 Below average 

Theft from the person 0.8 Above 

Vehicle crime 3.4 Below average 

Violence and sexual offences 15.4 Below average 

Source: HMICFRS (January 2019 data release), rate calculated using ONS 2018 mid-year population estimate.  
NOTE: this data is from a different source and time period to the bar charts shown in fig 4 

 

 

Page 125



South and Vale Community Safety Partnership (CSP) 
End of Year expenditure 2019-20

South & Vale CSP       
CSF 2019/20 £ £ £ £ £
 
 

Revenue Total Actual 
Spend

Committed 
Expenditure

Funding 
Available

PCC Income 2019/20 106846 106846    
Other Income 2019/20* 10845 10845    
Carry forward from 2018/19 37923 37923    
Total income 155614 155614    
Expenditure      
Projects 2019/20      
Violent Crime 0 0 0 0 0
Domestic Abuse 51000 51000 51000 0 0
Joint Tasking Meeting (JTM)* 15000 15000 1706 0 13294
Target Hardening* 15000 15000 10912 0 4088
YP Diversionary projects 40000 40000 37499 0 2501
Exploitation and Vulnerability* 16750 16750 4950 0 11800
Nightsafe 5000 5000 511 0 4489
Project funding 12864 12864 1789 0 11075
Total expenditure 2019/20 155614 155614 108367 0 47247

*Other Income received
£3,000 VWHDC allocated to Target Hardening for Domestic Abuse Sanctuary Schemes
£5,000 TVP allocated to Joint Tasking Initiatives
£1,095 received for the sale of covert cameras 
£1,750 match funding received from secondary schools towards Theatre Production Chelsea’s Story to raise awareness of child exploitation

All Police Crime Commissioner (PCC) income has been spent for 2019-20 (total actual spend = £108,367).  
For 2020-21 we have a carry forward of £47,247, this county funding was allocated to the CSP from local award funds and does not 
need to be spent in year.

P
age 126



Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 1 11/09/20

Scrutiny work programme
1 September 2020

MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 21 Sep 
2020

Confidential 5CP report
Councillor Debby 
Hallett

Adrianna Partridge 
adrianna.partridge@sout
handvale.gov.uk;
Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk;

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 21 Sep 
2020

Biffa annual 
performance report

to review the report Ian Matten
ian.matten@southandval
e.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 21 Sep 
2020

Community safety 
partnership annual 
report

to review the report Diane Foster
diane.foster@southandval
e.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 
Between 28 Sep 2020 
and 23 Nov 2020 tbc

Community 
infrastructure levy 
spending strategy

To consider the strategy  Councillor Bethia 
Thomas

Jayne Bolton
jayne.bolton@southandv
ale.gov.uk

P
age 127

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ian.matten@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ian.matten@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:diane.foster@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:diane.foster@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 2 11/09/20

Scrutiny Committee 28 
Sep 2020

Confidential GLL report Melanie Smans 
melanie.smans@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 28 
Sep 2020

Corporate Plan
Councillor Debby 
Hallett

Michelle Wells 
michelle.wells@southand
vale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 28 
Sep 2020

Emergency budget
Councillor Andrew 
Crawford

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 28 
Sep 2020

Establishing a delivery 
vehicle

Suzanne Malcolm 
suzanne.malcolm@south
andvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 14 
Oct 2020

Financial outturn 2019-
20 Councillor Andrew 

Crawford

Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 14 
Oct 2020

Car parking fees and 
charges

Liz Hayden
liz.hayden@southandval
e.gov.uk
John Backley 
john.backley@southandv
ale.gov.uk

P
age 128

mailto:melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 3 11/09/20

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 16 Nov 
2020

GLL performance 
report 19-20 Councillor Bethia 

Thomas

Melanie Smans 
melanie.smans@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 16 Nov 
2020

Saba contract to review the contract Liz Hayden
liz.hayden@southandval
e.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 16 Nov 
2020

Civil parking 
enforcement

John Backley
john.backley@southandv
ale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 23 
Nov 2020

Office accommodation Councillor Debby 
Hallett

Adrianna Partridge
adrianna.partridge@sout
handvale.gov.uk

Ben Coleman
ben.coleman@southandv
ale.gov.uk

Suzanne Malcolm
Suzanne.malcolm@south
andvale.gov.uk

P
age 129

mailto:melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ben.coleman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ben.coleman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 4 11/09/20

Scrutiny Committee 23 
Nov 2020

Performance 
management

Sally Truman
sally.truman@southandv
ale.gov.uk

Michelle Wells
michelle.wells@southand
vale.gov.uk

Adrianna Partridge
Adrianna.partridge@sout
handvale.gov.uk

Items for future meetings (dates to be determined)

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting 
Date

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 To respond to the 
consultation draft plan  

Councillor Catherine 
Webber

Adrian Duffield
adrian.duffield@southand
vale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee Delivery of Affordable 
Housing

To receive a progress report Councillor Bethia 
Thomas

Jayne Bolton
jayne.bolton@southandv
ale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date

Planning appeals To consider the annual report  Councillor Catherine 
Webber

Tracy Smith
tracy.smith@southandval
e.gov.uk

P
age 130

mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.bolton@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:tracy.smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:tracy.smith@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 5 11/09/20

Scrutiny Committee 
Between 1 Oct 2020 
and 30 Nov 2020

Public consultations To review how consultations 
are run

Councillor Debby 
Hallett

Shona Ware
shona.ware@southandva
le.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date

A34 diversion routing Council adopted a motion on 
9 October 2019 asking 
Scrutiny Committee to 
consider this.  

Councillor Emily 
Smith

Adrian Duffield
adrian.duffield@southand
vale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date

Regular budget 
monitoring

Councillor Andrew 
Crawford

Simon Hewings
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date

Strategic property 
review

Councillor Bethia 
Thomas

Catrin Mathias
catrin.mathias@southand
vale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date

The Charter, Abingdon Councillor Bethia 
Thomas

Suzanne Malcolm
suzanne.malcolm@south
andvale.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting 
Date

Didcot Garden Town - 
project update

Councillor Judy 
Roberts

Marybeth Harasz
marybeth.harasz@south
andvale.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting 
Date

Oxfordshire Growth 
Board - review outcome

Councillor Emily 
Smith

Andrew Down
andrew.down@southand
vale.gov.uk

P
age 131

mailto:shona.ware@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:shona.ware@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:marybeth.harasz@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:marybeth.harasz@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Vale of White Horse District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 6 11/09/20

HMO Legislation

P
age 132



South Oxfordshire District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 1 11/09/20

Scrutiny work programme
1 September 2020

MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 21 Sep 2020

confidential 5CP report Pieter-Paul Barker Adrianna Partridge
adrianna.partridge@south
andvale.gov.uk
Simon Hewings 
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 21 Sep 2020

Biffa annual performance 
report

David Rouane Ian Matten
ian.matten@southandval
e.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 21 Sep 2020

Community safety 
partnership annual 
report

David Rouane Liz Hayden, Diane Foster
liz.hayden@southandvale
.gov.uk
diane.foster@southandva
le.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 29 
Sep 2020

Establishing a delivery 
vehicle

To receive a progress report  Robin Bennett Suzanne Malcolm
Suzanne.malcolm@south
andvale.gov.uk

P
age 133

mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ian.matten@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ian.matten@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:diane.foster@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:diane.foster@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

South Oxfordshire District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 2 11/09/20

Scrutiny Committee 29 
Sep 2020

Corporate Plan Andrea Powell Michelle Wells 
michelle.wells@southand
vale.gov.uk
Adrianna Partridge 
Adrianna.partridge@sout
handvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 29 
Sep 2020

Emergency budget Leigh Rawlins Simon Hewings
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 29 
Sep 2020

CONFIDENTIAL GLL 
report

Maggie Filipova-Rivers Melanie Smans
melanie.smans@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 19 
Oct 2020

Financial outturn 2019-20 Leigh Rawlins Simon Hewings
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 19 
Oct 2020

Car parking fees David Rouane John Backley
john.backley@southandv
ale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 19 
Oct 2020

Annual monitoring report 
- Planning

Anne-Marie Simpson Richard Sandith 
Richard.sandith@southan
dvale.gov.uk

P
age 134

mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:michelle.wells@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Richard.sandith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Richard.sandith@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

South Oxfordshire District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 3 11/09/20

Scrutiny Committee 9 
Nov 2020

Community 
infrastructure levy 
spending strategy

To consider the strategy  Robin Bennett Mark Hewer
mark.hewer@southandva
le.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 9 
Nov 2020

Office accommodation Andrea Powell Suzanne Malcolm
suzanne.malcolm@south
andvale.gov.uk
Adrianna Partridge 
Adrianna.partridge@sout
handvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 9 
Nov 2020

Performance 
management

Andrea Powell Sally Truman
sally.truman@southandva
le.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 16 Nov 2020

GLL performance report 
2019-20

Maggie Filipova Rivers Melanie Smans 
melanie.smans@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Between  16 
Nov 2020 and 31 Dec 
2020

Saba car park contract Sue Cooper Liz Hayden
liz.hayden@southandvale
.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 16 Nov 2020

Civil parking 
enforcement

David Rouane John Backley
john.backley@southandv
ale.gov.uk

P
age 135

mailto:mark.hewer@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:mark.hewer@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:suzanne.malcolm@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Adrianna.partridge@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:melanie.smans@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:liz.hayden@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:john.backley@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

South Oxfordshire District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 4 11/09/20

Scrutiny Committee 
November 2020

South Oxfordshire Local 
Plan

Anne-Marie Simpson Emma Baker
emma.baker@southandv
ale.gov.uk

Items for future meetings (dates to be determined)

Scrutiny Committee Planning appeals To consider the annual report  Anne-Marie Simpson Tracy Smith
tracy.smith@southandval
e.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee

Oxfordshire Plan 2050 To respond to the consultation 
draft plan  

Anne-Marie Simpson Adrian Duffield
adrian.duffield@southand
vale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date

Leisure strategy review Maggie Filipova Rivers

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date

Regular budget 
monitoring

Leigh Rawlins Simon Hewings
simon.hewings@southan
dvale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting Date

Strategic property review Robin Bennett Catrin Mathias 
catrin.mathias@southand
vale.gov.uk

P
age 136

mailto:emma.baker@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:emma.baker@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:tracy.smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:tracy.smith@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:adrian.duffield@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:simon.hewings@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

South Oxfordshire District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 5 11/09/20

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee

Didcot Garden Town - 
project update

David Rouane Marybeth Harasz
marybeth.harasz@southa
ndvale.gov.uk

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee

Oxfordshire Growth 
Board - review outcome

Sue Cooper Andrew Down
andrew.down@southandv
ale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee Didcot Gateway David Rouane Catrin Mathias
catrin.mathias@southand
vale.gov.uk

Scrutiny Committee Transformation reviews Andrea Powell

Scrutiny Committee 25 
Jan 2021

Delivery of crematorium, 
graveyard or alternative 
provision

To review provision over next 
20 years within the district  

Robin Bennett Catrin Mathias
catrin.mathias@southand
vale.gov.uk

P
age 137

mailto:marybeth.harasz@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:marybeth.harasz@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.down@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk


MEETING AGENDA ITEM PURPOSE CABINET MEMBER CONTACT OFFICER

South Oxfordshire District Council – Scrutiny work programme - 1 September 2020 Page 6 11/09/20

P
age 138


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Biffa annual performance report
	7 Community Safety Partnership annual report
	South and Vale CSP Plan 2020_21_
	Oxon SIA 2020 Apr20 FINAL
	South and Vale CSP End of Year Expenditure 2019-20

	8 Work schedule and dates for all South and Vale scrutiny meetings
	SOx scrutiny work programme 11 Sept 2020


